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Group strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2020

The directors present their strategic report for the group and the parent cbmbany for the year ended 30 Sebtember 2020.

’

Principal activities and review of the business

Almac Group Limited is a private limited company incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and limited by shares.
The company is domiciled in Northern Ireland. The parent company’s registered office is detailed on page 1.

The parent company is a holding investment company and it also prov1des 51gn1ﬁcant operational and other support functions to
the Almac group of companies.

‘The activities of the group extend from drug discovery through all areas of clinical trials to the commercialisation of
pharmaceutical products. The group provides world-class integrated research and development suppoit and an unparalleled
range of services to customers, including the market leaders, within the pharmaceutical and biotechnology sectors.

The group’s strategy is to create shareholder value by.invesﬁng for the long term and by positioning the group to be the leader
in its chosen markets. The performance for the year under review reflects further sustained progress towards achieving this long
term objective and at the same time maintaining the group’s strong balance sheet.

Performance and position

‘ The group’s profit before income tax for the year is £63,549,574 (2019: £47,646,334). The Group’s profit after income tax is
£52,866,741 (2019: £38,983,067). Net assets of the Group are £489,602,133 (2019: £445,115,117). ,

. The group’s strategy of creating shareholder value through continued investment helped deliver an improvement in profitability
in 2020. ‘This was achieved across a range of business units within the group by a combination of revenue growth and margin
improvement including a better mix of business from higher margin revenue streams.

Investment in Almac’s global footprint has strengthened our customer proposition and supported growth in key segments. Group

performance in 2020 was further enhanced through the receipt of a number of out-licensing payments from products developed

in-house. This improvement in the underlying trading performance of the group along with sound working capital management
’ produced an increase in net cash generation for the year.

With no dividends paid in 2020, all net profits were retained growing the net asset base of the group.
Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) -
The directors consider that, given the nature of the group’s operations, the KPIs are growth in revenue, earnings before interest,

" tax, depreciation, amortisation and research and development expenditure (“EBITDA before research and -development
expenditure’’) and employee numbers. These are reviewed on a regular basis wuhm the operating companies.

2020 2019
Growth in revenue . . o +6 % +16%
EBITDA before research and development expénditure . £112,556,286 £79,502,905

Employee numbers ) . 5,466 5,150
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the group and company’s strategy are sub)ect toa number of risks. The
principal issues are discussed below:

' Competmon

The group operates in-competitive global markets and aims to provide excellent products and services at competitive prices.
These factors are continually reviewed in each business to ensure appropriate margins are being realised and that the quality of
service and products is of the highest standard and consistently improving. Quality systems are maintained accordmg to current
good manufactunng practlce and 1ntemat10na1 quality standards. )

Performarice -is affected by market pressure to reduce prices, together with the increasing impact of low ‘cost generics. The
emergence of services provided from countries with low labour costs is alsora major competitive factor in the marketplace.

Employees

The group’s performance is largely dependent on its staff and therefore the reliance on key individuals together with the
continuing ability to attract people with relevant experience and skills are important factors in ensuring the success of the group.
To mitigate these risks, the group has trammg, learning and development’ programmes in place and has implemented a number
of incentive schemes linked to the group s performance that are de51gned to retain key 1nd1v1duals and provide attractive long-
term career opportunities. :

Supply chain

Other risks faced are product availability and the fluctuation in prices of both raw materials and consumables. The security of
product supply is monitored by the businesses on an ongoing basis with regular reviews of such key factors as supplier financial
strength, product quality and service levels. The group’s continual review of market prices provides some protection from the
potentially adverse impact of volatility in raw material prices.

Section 172 (1) Statement

In accordance with section 172 (1) of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), each of the company’s directors (both individually and
collectively) act in a way in which they actively promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole
and the company’s wider role in the community. The company’s directors take account of, among other matters, the requirements .
set out in section 172(1) (a) — (f) of the Companies Act 2006 including: : '

o the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

o the interests of the company's employees; .

o the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

e the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment; .

o the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
e the need to act fairly between members of the company.

The directors of the company acknowledge that the long and short term success of the company is dependent upon their -
engagement with all of its stakeholders including the company’s employees, customers, suppliers, regulators, and the wider
community. The directors are mindful that this engagement is required in order to make informed decisions at board level.
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Seetien 172 (1) Statement (continued)

The below table sets out the steps taken by the directors of the company to engage with each of the aforementioned groups, the -

purpose / aim of that engagement, and the results and benefits of the engagements.

Engagement with Stakeholders

Stakeholder Group

Engagement

_Employees

Almac Group employs
approximately 5,500 people. The
directors recognise that in order to
provide continued long term
success for the company and its
stakeholders, the company must
provide a happy, balanced and
safe work environment. People
are Almac’s core asset.
Individually and collectively
people are critical to the success
of our vision. We 'recognize '
excellence and acknowledge that’
to empower our employees, we
need to invest in their continuous
development.

Each business unit within Almac hosts monthly Employee Forums
whereby employees can directly raise any concerns or issues through
nominated representatives with senior management and the directors.
Meeting minutes are shared group-wide and follow up actions are:
allocated to the relevant departments in the company.

Almac grants a range of special recognition awards to employees who
demonstrate a commitment to the goals and vision of Almac. These
awards include ACE Awards (“Almac Celebrates Excellence”) and long
service awards. .

In 2020 Almac made discretionary payments as a direct and tangible
response to the valued and committed service of our employees as
essential workers through the Covid-19 pandemic.

The directors arrange a yearly “fun day” across all Almac sites in
recognition of our employee’s contribution and in acknowledgement of
the importance of positive employee relauonshnps The fun day did not
take place in 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic, however the directors
intend to arrange it again in the future when safe to do so.

Almac operates a Performance Management Programme (PMP) which
facilitates direct and meaningful engagement between employees and line
managers. Yearly training goals are set, and analysed annually to ensure

_ continued employee progression and one-to-one communication on

development.

The directors appointed a dedicated Pastoral Care Manager to maintain a
pastoral care service for employee personal wellbeing. Employees can
reach out 24/7 on a confidential basis to discuss any wellbeing issues.

Customers

Almac Group provides services to
over 600 companies in the
pharmaceutical  industry.. The
directors are mindful of the need to
actively deliver the company’s
unique culture of delivering
exceptional service solutions for
its customers in a manner which is

maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct. We
are committed to understanding
and exceeding our customers’
expectations.

mutually- beneficial whilst |

‘Customer surveys are carried out by dedicated teams in Almac HR /

Marketing to ensure that Almac’s service offering is constantly evolving
and stays consistent with ‘our customers’ long-term requirements and
expectations.

Almac, through dedicated Quality Assurance Departments acros’s‘its
divisions, facilitates on-site client audits of its worldwide facilities to
ensure that customers are confident that Almac performs its services in

" accordance with all laws and regulatory requirements. In 2020, Almac

ensured that remote / online audits were offered to clients .to ensure
customer audit requirements were met during the Covid-19 pandemic.

In 2020, the directors approved, and Almac’s Central Marketing
department carried out a brand awareness survey to ensure that Almac’s
corporate message to its current and prospective customers is consistent
with Almac’s long lerm strategic goals and to reccive detailed feedback
from these valued customers.
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Section 172 (1) Statement (continued)

4.

Almac’s Corporate and Legal Affairs department works very closely-with
all customers to ensure that the key corporate policies of Almac and its
customers (such as anti-bribery, modem slavery, sustainability and
environmental policies) are aligned. Almac engages with its customers’
legal teams on its customers’ own policies and, where appropriate, these
policies aré included in underlying legal agreements with customers.

The directors, through engagement with its own Business Development
and Project teams have established a detailed project governance structure
which ensures frequent and meaningful engagement with customers on a
more operational / project\'management level in respect of specific work
packages and projects. The individual project governance structure can
vary from customer to customer however at a high level this includes
regular project meetings and KPI reporting.

Suppliers

The directors of the company
recognise that the company’s:
supply chain is an extension of
the company’s own business.
Accordingly, the company aims
to maintain a positive and strong
relationship with its suppliers and
to ensure sufficient controls are in
place to ensure the company can
continue to provide customer
service at a very high level.

The directors recognise that suppliers to Almac are an extension of
Almac’s own service offering to its customers. Almac has a culture of
fostering long term, quality and cost effective .relationships with its
suppliers and this "is reflected in Almac’s extensive Procurement
departments for its business units; each with its own detailed Standard
Operating Procedures relevant to its service offering and each of which
reports into a Central Procurement departmént.

Almac carries out regular and appropriately detailed audits and
inspections of the broad range of suppliers to Almac. Where necessary,
Almac works closely- with suppliers to ensure all remedial -actions are
implemented quickly. '

Almac’s Corporate and Legal Affairs department works very closely with
the legal teams of its suppliers to ensure that Almac’s global policies and
policies (such as modemn slavery, anti-bribery) are acknowledged and
accepted by its suppliers.

Community

Almac is part of the wider
community and the directors are
conscious that the actions' of
Almac have a bearing on the
community and -environment.
Almac is committed to minimising
its impact on the environment and
supporting the community through
long term commitments and
initiatives.

The directors established the Almac Charity Committee, which
implements the charitable goals of Almac each year. In addition to
discretionary donations to charities chosen by employees and directors,
the Charity Committee also supports applications for funding from
employees undertaking individual fundraising activities. In 2020, Almac
donated funds to local and international charities in recognition of their
invaluable impact and in line with our charity and community policies.

Almac maintains -and continually reviews environmental and
sustainability policies. Almac has undertaken to meet significant

* environmental goals including a commitment to monitor and ‘minimise

single-use plastics both within its supply chain and for internal use as far
ds is practicably possible. Almac Group promotes the use of recycled
material throughout its business ensuring employees are encouraged to
reduce, reuse and recycle all material. '

Almac completes an annual Global HSE Annual Report to demonstrate
our approach to minimising risk and ensuring the health and safety of our
employees, clients and visitors. In addition, we share details of our waste
management and energy usage across our facilities.
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Section 172 (1) Statement (continued)

4. The directors are committed to the fundamental issues facing society. In
May 2020, Almac’s CEO reaffirmed the Board’s continued commitment
to diversity, non-discrimination and equal opportunity (and its pre-
existing underlying polices) in a video message distributed to employees.

Regulators Each business unit within Almac engages in an open and cooperative way

with all of the regulatory bodies, statutory authorities and all other local
The company operates in a highly and international government agencies which governs its respective area
regulated industry and the of business. Almac is audited and certified as required by law with
directors are mindful of the strict - MHRA, FDA, HPRA and other agencies. Almac has dedicated Quality
legal and regulatory requirements Assurance departments to ensure compliance, and such compliance is
in relation to which the company reported directly to the Board.

must comply.

Future developments

The group intends to continue its commitment to research and development and capital investment to provide innovative
solutions and services to its customers.

There are many challenges facing the pharmaceutical and biotech markets with the introduction of new technologies and the
emergence of new global competitors. The group believes it is well positioned to meet these future challenges and opportunities
within this changing market place.

Environment

The group recognises its corporate responsibility to carry out its operations whilst ensuring that there is minimal environmental
impact. The directors’ continued aim is to comply with all applicable environmental legislation, prevent pollution and reduce
waste wherever possible.

Health and safety

- The gfoup is committed to achieving the highest practicable standards in health and safety management and strives to make all
sites and offices safe environments for employees and customers alike.

Going concern
The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of at least twelve months from the date of signing this report and
consequently have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate financial resources to meet its operational needs for at

least a period of twelve months from the date the financial statements are signed and therefore the going concern basis has been
adopted in preparing the financial statements.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

Fiadl) (s

N Harkin
Director
15 January 2021
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_ Du'ectors report for the year ended 30-September 2020

The drrectors present their annual report and the audited ﬁnancral statements of the group and the parent company for the year
- ended 30 September 2020. A review of thé business, position at the year end and future developments are detailed in the Group
strategic report and included in this report by cross reference. :

Financial risk management

The group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include market risk (including price risk and interest rate
risk), foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.. The group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to
limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the group by momtormg the foregoing risks and ensuring that the balance
sheet strength is maintained at all times. . )

Price risk

The group does not have a major exposure to commodity price risk as a result of its operauons and is not exposed to equity
securities price nsk as it holds no listed investments.

Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings which are a combmauon of overdrafts bank borrowings, term loans, loans
from related parties and finance lease liabilities. Interest bearing assets consist of short- term bank deposits. Borrowings at
variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair valpe interest
rate risk. The group manages these risks by a mixture of variable interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowings and loans from
related parties linked to LIBOR or UK Bank of England base rate and fixed rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities.
The interest rates are monitored on a regular basis with reference to movements in global interest rates and the potential impact
upon the group’s cost of borrowing. Further commentary is provided in note 3.

Foreign exchange risk

Whilst the main part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pounds sterling, the group is exposed to -
foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business, principally on sales in-US dollars and investment in its overseas
. operations, principally in the USA. Group policy is to minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by
matching local currency income and costs. While the group has not used ﬁnancral instruments to date to hedge foreign exchange
exposure, thlS position is kept constantly under review.

Credit risk
The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit

control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
The amount.of exposure to individual customers is subject to a limit, which is reassessed regularly by the Board. Credit risk also

arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions. Bankmg arrangements are reviewed and regularly '

reassessed by the board.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and

considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these; monitoring balance sheet 11qu1d1ty ratios against internal and
extemal regulatory requirements; and mamtammg debt ﬁnancmg plans.

Dividends

The overriding objectives of the Almac Group are to:

° Strategrcally develop and expand a world class Group of compames operating in the Pharmaceutical and Biotech
sectors; and
~ o Adhere to the healthcare objectives of the McClay Foundation, thereby protectmg the legacy of the Group s Founder,
Sir Allen McClay, and his vision for the Foundation and its charitable purposes. .
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Dividends (continued)
Those objectives are Teflected in the Strategic Goals adopted by Almac Whiqh include, amongst others:

remaining owned by The McClay Foundation;
continuing Group wide innovation; -
achievement of best-in-class business offerings;
maintaining and improving profit margins; and
ciiltivating a desirable place to work.

In order to achieve its objectives and meet those strategic goals, Almac has developed ambitious capital and research and
development programmes requiring significant on-going investment in its trading subsidiaries and the R&D programmes they
are engaged in. That investment is funded primarily by bank borrowings and the reinvestment of all profits generated from the
Group’s trading activities back into Almac and its subsidiaries. As a consequence, no dividends were paid during the year (2019:
£nil) and the directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend (2019: £nil).

. Energy and carbon reporting

In line with the ‘Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations
2018’ and related accompanying government guidance ‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting requirements: March 2019, the Group presents details of its carbon and energy usage.

In line with the associated regulanons and guldance the Group has only provided consolidated reporting for compames meeting
the Companies Act definition of a ‘large’ company and where annual energy consumption is greater than 40,000 kWh In
addition, under the associated regulations and guidance, reportmg for foreign sub51d1anes is not required.

Accordingly, the followmg report is based on the energy and carbon usage of Almac Group Limited, Almac Sciences Limited,
Galen Limited, Almac Clinical Services Limited and Almac Pharma Services Limited. The activities of these companies include
the manufacturing, packing and distribution of pharmaceutical product, storage and logistic service and the pr0v1s1on of custom
synthesis services on a range of chemicals for customers.

As per the associated regulations and guidance, comparative mformatJon is not mandatory i in the first year of reportmg and has

not been presented.
J

_ Current reporting year 01
Oct 2019 - 30 Sep 2020
o UK
Energy Consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) - . 89,560,040
Scope 1 - Emissions in metric tonnes CO2e. .
Total Scope 1 Emissions from acnvmes which the group . 9,372
owns or controls
‘| Total Scope 2 Emissions from purchase of electricity 9,438
purchased for own use _
Total gross Scope 1 & Scope 2 emissions in metric: 18,810
tonnes CO2e
Intensity Ratio tCO2e (gross Scope 1 + 2)
tonnes CO2e / UK employee o 6.5
Scope 3 - Emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Total Scope 3 Emissions from business travel by means not 100
owned or controlled by the group
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Energy and carbon reporting (continued)
Methodology

To determine emissions for the year ended 30 September 2020, the company used a methodology compliant with the Greenhouse
Gas (‘GHG’) Protocol and incorporated the 2020 UK Government GHG conversion factors for green-house gas reporting.

Gas, biomethane and electricity consumption was based on actual data, obtained from supplier invoices, meter readings and
online supplier portal data dependant on the specific arrangements and circumstances of each subsidiary. Transport fuel
consumption was obtained from employee expense claims and purchase invoices/receipts. The collected consumption data is
. then converted into greenhouse gas emissions associated with each activity using annually updated emission factors from the
UK Government.

Energy efficiency measures

A sample of energy efficiency actions undertaken by the Group during the financial year is outlined below:

e  Operation of a Combined Heat & Power (‘CHP’) plant which, when available, uses biomethane gas produced from
renewable sources. Waste heat from the CHP is used in production processes and displaces the need to burn additional
gas for heating purposes;

e Engagement in a programme to replace inefficient machinery motors with more energy efficient models across a range
of production equipment; and

e Lighting upgrades to more efficient LEDs in a number of manufacturing areas.

Research and development activities

The group is strongly committed to research and development activities in the areas of clinical diagnostics and drug discovery
in order to secure and enhance its market position. Research expenditure in the year totalled £8,326,343 (2019: 8,850,655) and
was expensed as incurred. This is stated before the deduction of £973,868 (2019: £1,049,181) of research and development tax
credits. A further £3,856,209 (2019: £2,739,865) of research and development tax credits has been deducted from other expenses.
No development expenditure was incurred during the year (2019: £nil).

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are shown on page 1.

Political donations

No donations for political purposes were made during the year (2019: £nil).

Employees

The group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them or their
representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect their
interests. Employee involvement in the group is encouraged, as-achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of
the financial and economic factors affecting the group plays a major role in objectives.

The group is committed to employment policies, which follow best practice based on equal opportunities for all employees,
irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The group gives full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made
for the continued employment and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the group. If
members of staff become disabled, where possible, the group continues employment, either in the same or an alternative position "
with appropriate retraining being given if necessary.
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Covid 19

The Covid 19 pandemic has brought disruption to the operations of many businesses including the group. It has also led to an
unprecedented level of market volatility and economic uncertainty. These events and conditions have been considered in the
preparation of these financial statements, where management has exercised its judgement in the process of applying the
company’s accounting policies. There are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial and financial assets have been assessed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence or indication that these assets may be impaired, taking into consideration the conditions existing at the balance
sheet date including the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic. There is no material adverse financial impact arising from the
assessments carried out by the management. As the global Covid 19 situation remains fluid at the date these financial statements

were authorised for issue, the group cannot reasonably ascertain the full extent of the probable impact of the Covid 19 disruptions
on its operating and financial performance for the financial year ending 30 September 2021.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
So far as each of the directors in office at the date of approval of these financial statements is aware:
e there is no relevant audit information of which the parent company’s auditors are unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the parent company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors

The independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office, and a resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.
M / 3
N Harkin

Director
15 January 2021
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the group and company financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view .of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

state whether international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and
company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s and
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Yy 7/ A

N Harkin
Director
15 January 2021
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Independent audltors report to the members of Almac Group
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion , ‘ “
In our opinion, Almac Group Limited’s group ﬁnanc1a1 statements and parent company ﬁnanc1a1 statements (the “financial
statements”):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2020 and of the
group’s profit and the group’s and the parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

e havebeen properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006, as regards the parent company’s financial statements; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. .

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial statements (the “Annual Report”), which
‘ comprise: the group and parent company balance sheets as at 30 September 2020; the group income statement and the group
statement of comprehensive income, the group and parent company cash flow statements, and the group and parent company
statements of changes in equity for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of
the significant accounting policies. . .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethxcal respon51b111t1es in
accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or '

o the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group s and parent
company’s ablhty to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ - -
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon. .

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement,
we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.
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With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the
UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the respons1b1ht1es described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.’

Strategic Report and Directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ report for the year ended 30 September 2020 is consxstent with the ﬁnanc1al statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements. .

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements set out on page 11, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is
nécessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

* Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s web51te at:
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other r'evquired, reporting .

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and exp]anations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

evid MacAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewatershouseCoopers LLP~
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Belfast
20 January 2021
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o
Group income statement for the year ended 30 September 2020
2020 2019

. "Note £ £
Continuing operations ‘
Revenue 4 677,253,640 634,279,795
Cost of sales 5 (447,133,092) (426,642,456)
Gross profit 230,120,548 207,637,339
Distribution costs (29,218,198) " (29,915,353)
Administrative expenses ' (125,616,352) (126,433,012)
Research and development net expenditure (7,352,475) (7,801,474)
Operating profit 67,933,523 43 487,500
Opérating profit is analysed as: ‘ ‘ ‘
Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and
research and.development expenditure (“EBITDA™) 112,556,286 79,502,905

" Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (21,111,524) (19,590,811)
Depreciation of right of use assets ' ' © (1,176,992) .
Amortisation of intangible assets (8,530,765) (8,623,120)
Research apd development expenditure (7,803,482) 4 (1,801,474) .
Finance costs ' (4,398,009) (1,239,491)

" Finance income 14,060 5,398,325
Finance (cost)/income — net (4,383,949) 4,158,834
Profit before income tax 63,549,574 47,646,334
Income téx expense 8 (10,682,833) (8,663,267) '
Profit for the year . 52,866,741

38,983,067

. The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral part of ihese consolidated financial statements.
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Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 September 2020

2020 . 2019

AR 4 £
Profit for tl_le year . : 52,866,741 38,983,067 -
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Items that may be subsequenﬂy reclassified to profit or loss: ' .
Currency translation differences (5,146,733) 3,609,551
Total other comprehensive (éxpense)/income for the year (5,146,733) . 3,609,551
Total comprehensive income for the year 47,720,008

42,592,618

4’IA‘he notes on pages 21 to 68 are an intégral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group and parent company statements of changes in equity ™
For the year ended 30 September 2020
Attributable to owners of the parent
" Currency
_ Share Share translation Retained Total
capital - premium reserve éarnings  equity .
Group £ £ £ £ £
At 1 October 2018 15,290,562 173,867,071 33,309,357 180,004,909 402,471,899
‘Comprehensive income ' '
Profit for the year - - - 38,983,067 38,983,067
Other comprehensive expense ) ‘
Currency translation differences - - 3,609,551 - 3,609,551
Total comprehensive income . - - 3,609,551 38,983,067 42,592,618
Transactions with owners recognised : i '
directly in equity . .
Issue of share capital (note 23) 5,750 44,850 - - 50,600
At 30 September 2019 15296312 173911921 36,918,908 218,987,976 445,115,117
Arising on the adoption of IFRS 16. ' - - - (3,252,992) ~ (3,252,992)
Comprehensive income .
Profit for the year _ - - - 52,886,741 52,886,741
Other comprehensive income .
Currency translation differences - - (5,146,733) - (5,146,733)
‘At 30 September 2020 15,296,312 173,911,921 31,772,175 268,621,725 489,602,133
Retained
, earnings/
. Share Share (accumulated Total
-ca_pital premium losses) equity
Company £ £ £ ) £
"At 1 October 2018 ‘ 15,290,562 173,867,071 1,125,761 190,283,394
Arising on the adoption of IFRS9 (note 16) . - ‘ - (26,713,523) ' (26,713,523)
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year ; . 454010 - 454,010
" Transactions with owners recognised directly in ' '
equity e B
- Issue of share capital (note 23) 5,750 44,850 ’ R 50,600
At 1 October 2019 15,296,312 173,911,921 . (25,133,752) 164,074,481
' Arising on the adoption of IFRS 16 - - 2,365,932 2,365,932
Comprehensive income :
Loss for the year - - (5,495,056) (5,495,056)
At 30 September 2020 15,296,312 173,911,921 (28,262,876)

160,945,357 -

The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group balance sheet as at 30 September 2020
2020 2019

Note £ £
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 305,098,847 292,412,075
Right of use assets 10 53,350,489 -
Goodwill 11 82,836,147 84,270,784
Other intangible assets 12 28,162,261 30,910,375
Deferred income tax asset 14 706,543 2,054,227
Total non-current assets 470,154,287 409,647,461
Current assets
Inventories 15 30,466,407 29,418,075
Current income tax asset 9,638,731 1,526,874
Trade and other receivables 16 161,352,991 154,353,975
Cash and cash equivalents 17 77,691,180 27,401,069
Total current assets 279,149,309 215,699,993
Total assets 749,303,596 625,347,454
Equity and liabilities
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 16,586,143 20,912,251
Trade and other payables 19 127,449,259 111,910,960
Current income tax liabilities - 550,525
Total current liabilities 144,035,402 133,373,736
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 68,863,192 3,243,698
Deferred income tax liabilities 14 12,960,496 11,596,508
Deferred income 20 17,838,505 16,269,150
Other non-current liabilities 21 12,126,039 12,524,179
Provisions for liabilities and charges 22 3,877,829 3,225,066
Total non-current liabilities 115,666,061 46,858,601
Total liabilities 259,701,463 180,232,337
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 23 15,296,312 15,296,312
Share premium 23 173,911,921 173,911,921
Currency translation reserve 31,772,175 36,918,908
Retained earnings 268,621,725 218,987,976
Total equity 489,602,133 445,115,117
Total equity and liabilities 749,303,596 625,347,454

The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements on pages
14 to 68 were authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 15 January 2021 and were signed on their behalf by:

A-D A=

A D Armstrong (Director)

TP

N Harkin (Director)

Registered number: NI 041551
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Parent company balance sheet as at 30 September 2020
' 2020 2019
Note £ £

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 10,460,818 9,905,372
Right of use assets 10 3,455,483 -
Other intangible assets 12 1,325,246 1,155,711
Investments in subsidiaries 13 175,620,913 175,620,913
Deferred income tax assets 14 - 774,260
Finance lease receivable 16 13,063,678 -
Total non-current assets 203,926,138 187,456,256
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 270,929,177 282,419,449
Cash and cash equivalents 17 34,294,120 -
Total current assets 305,223,297 282,419,449
Total assets 509,149,435 469,875,705
Equity and liabilities
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 290,495,583 266,157,704
Trade and other payables 19 23,427,531 26,808,773
Total current liabilities 313,923,114 292,966,477
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings : 18 32,701,375 9,525,626
Deferred income tax liabilities 14 98,410 -
Deferred income 20 743 1,355
Other non-current liabilities 21 1,480,436 3,307,766
Total non-current liabilities 34,280,964 12,834,747
Total liabilities 348,204,078 305,801,224
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 23 15,296,312 15,296,312
Share premium 23 173,911,921 173,911,921
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)
At 1 October- (25,133,752) 1,125,761
(Loss)/profit for the year (5,495,056) 454,010
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 . (26,713,523)
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 16 2,365,932 -
At 30 September (28,262,876) (25,133,752)
Total equity 160,945,357 164,074,481
Total equity and liabilities 509,149,435 469,875,705

The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral part of these financial statements. The financial statements on pages 14 to 68 were
authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 15 January 2021 and were signed on their behalf by:

A DN

A D Armstrong (Director)

Sl

S Campbell (Director)

Registered Number N1041551
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Group cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2020

\ . . ) -2020 : 2019
: . . ' . Note £ A . £ '

. Cash flows from operating activities ' ] '

Cash generated from operations A : 25 108,561,309 47,744,886
Interest paid ' ’ ' : (2,181,439) (1,239,491)
Income tax paid ) SR : - (8,511,662) (4,606,680)
Net cash generated from operating activities : . - 97,868,208 -41,898,715
Cash flows from-investing activities .

Purchase of intangible assets - . o (6,048,275) (4,951,087)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ©.(37,333,904)  (46,392,860)
Pfooeeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 13,850 - 155,490
Capital grants received . _' . . 3,914,936 o 1,883,628
Purchase of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) : S . (48;790)
Finance income received ( o 14,060 - 84,037 .
Net cash used in investing activities. — (39,439,333) (49,269,582)
Cash ﬂ0w$ from financing activities '

Lease pﬁnéi‘pal payméms » . - ' (9,396,269) - (109,151)
Issue of share capital : , V - 50,600 -
New loans received ) ' ‘ . : 19,928,940 ' i -
Repayment of borrowings ' o : 4 (7,032,068) (3,793,479)
Repayments to related parties (net) (267,855) (357,140)

~ Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities . . 3,232,748 (4,209,170)

" Net increase/(deérease) in cash and éash equivalents ’ . 61,661,623 - (11,580,037)
Effect of foreign exchange movement on cash and cash : (521,205) 366,218
equivalents .

Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at beginning of the year 11,409,669 22,623,488
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of the year 17 72,550,087 11,409,669

The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Parent company cash flow statement'for the year ended 30 Septembei' 2020

2020 - _ 2019 -
) . Note. £ g £
Cash flows from operating activities ) A '
Cash genératé_d from operations o v 25 4,061,366 " 1,366,980
Interest paid : (12,467,684) (9,439,892)
~ Net cash used in operating activities '(8,406,318) (8,072,912)
Cash flows from investing activities ' ‘
Purchase of property, plant aﬁd equipment . (1,908,236) . -~ (1,714,227)
Purchase of intangible assets ‘ : (788,791) - (162,534)
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings . ' ' _ - (2,219.895)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ' 8,000 - - -
Receipts from finance leases o 582,975 -
Repayments from/(advances to) group undertakings : 8,576,573 (40,337,800)
Finance income received ' ) ' . 8,892,605 15,612,089
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities ' 15,363,126 (28,822,367)
Cash flows from financing activities ) .
Lease principal payments : o A (1,129,302) (67.924)
Repayment of borrowings ' ‘ | .(5,264,843). (3,102,060)
New loans received . A 15,000,000 -
Advances from group undertakings o , 25,521,610 27,162,951
- Repayments to related parties ' 4 : . (®9305) (357,140)
Issue of share capital ‘ A , - 50,600
Net cash generated from financing activities - ’ 34,038,160 . 23,686,427
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' 40,994,968 (13,208,852)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of the year (11,700,848) 1,508,004
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of the year .17 29,294,120 . (11,700,848)

The notes on pages 21 to 68 are an integral parf of these consolidated financial statements.
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" Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020

1 Accounting policies -

- General information

The group’s principal activities during the year extend from drug discovery through all areas of clinical trials to the
commercialisation of pharmaceutical products. The financial statements are presented in UK pound sterling. Almac Group
Limited is a private limited company incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and limited by shares. The company is
" domiciled in Northern Ireland. The company’s registered address is detaﬂed on page 1. The financial statements were approved
by the Board of directors on 15 January 2021.

The principal accounting pohcres adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
pohcres have been consistently applied to all the years presented ‘unless otherwise stated. .

Basis of preparatlon

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirerhents of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. Management has
concluded that there are no critical assumptions, estimates or judgements involving a high degree of judgement or complexrty
which require further disclosure other than that disclosed in respect of the self-insured medical scheme in note 28.

/ ‘ .
Certain comparative amounts in thc financial statements have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the
current year. The group’s accounting policies are detailed below. '

Parent company profit and loss account
The directors’ have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
presented an income statement for the company alone. The loss for the year ended 30 September 2020 is £5,495,056 (2019:

profit of £454,010)

New standards, amendments and interpretations.effective in the year to 30 September 2020

The accounting policies set out below are those that the company has adopted in accordance with international accounting
staridards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 30 September 2020.

The group has applied the following standards and amendments for the ﬁrst time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 October 2019: .

. IFRS 16 Leases; - . ) A

The group has changed its accounting policies as a result of adopting IFRS 16. The group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recogmsed the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on 1 October 2019. Further details
on this are found below. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

IFRS 16 Leases became mandatorily effective on 1 January 2019. Tne group has applied this for the first time in this’
accounting period which resulted in changes to the accounting policies.
The group transitioned to IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach as follows:

o the lease liability was measured at 1 October 2019 at the present value of the remaining lease payments based on the
incremental borrowing rate over the remaining lease term; and

e the right of use asset was measured at 1 October 2019 as if [FRS 16 had been applied from the 1nceptwu of the ]ease but
using the mcremental borrowing rate as at 1 October 2019.

- The difference in these amounts is recognised as an adjustment to retained eamings on 1 October 2019.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)‘

1  Accounting policies (continued)

On adoption of IFRS 16, the group elected to apply the relief provisions available and has not reviewed. contracts under the .
" definition of a lease per [FRS 16, which had previously not been classified as leases under the principles of IAS 17. Therefore,
only contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 October 2019 have the deﬁnition of a lease per IFRS 16 applied.

In addition, the group decided to apply recognition exemptions to leases thh a term not exceedmg 12 months and leases where
the underlying assets are of low value.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the year to 30 September 2020 (continued)

For leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17, these lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 October 2019. The group has used
the following practical expedients permitted by IFRS 16 when applying this for the first time to leases prev1ously classified as
operating leases: .

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;

Applied the exemption not to recognise liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term remaining;
Excluded initial direct costs for the measurement of right-to-use assets at the date of initial application; and

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. -
Where an extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, the payments during that extension period have been
taken into account when determining.the lease liability. :

No adjustments are required on transition to [FRS 16 for leases where the group acts as a lessor, except for a sub- lease A
reassessment of the classification of a sub-lease is required under IFRS 16. .

The group has revised the presentation of operating leases from 30 September 2019 to include operating leases that have been
identified during the transition to IFRS 16 as having previously been included in the disclosure of operating lease
commitments. This resulted in a decrease for the year ended 30 September 2019 from £86,387,440 to £80,499,082.

On transition, £57,438,259 of right-of-use assets and £64,118,599 of lease liabilities were recognised.

. £
Operating lease-.commitments as originally reported in the financial statements at 30 September 2019 86,387,440
Operating lease commitments included in error in the financial statements at 30 September 2019 (5,888,358)
Operating lease commitments as restated at 30 September 2019 . ] o 80,499,082
Operating lease commitments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate : (16,380,483)
‘Lease liabilities recognised at 1 October 2019 _ ’ ) 64,118,599

The company has revised the presentation of operating leases from 30 September 2019 to include operating leases that have
been identified during the transition to IFRS 16 as having previously been omitted from the disclosure of operating lease
commitments. This resulted in an_increase for the year ended 30 September 2019 from £22,318,059 to £22,360,875.

On transition, £3,799,219 of right-of-use assets and £18,221,879 of lease liabilities were recognised.

£
Operating lease commitmeénts as originally reported in the financial statements at 30 September 2019 22,318,059
Operating lease commitmerits omitted in error from the financial statements at 30 September 2019 - 42,816
Operating lease commitments as restated at 30 September 2019 22,360,875
Operating lease eommitments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate- (4,138,996)
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 October 2019 : - 18,221,879

These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 October 2019. The weighted average rate applied was 2.1%.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

1 Accountmg policies (contmued)
‘Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effectlve and have not been adopted early by the group

The following new standards, new interpretations, and amendments to standards. and iriterpretations that are not yet effectlve
and have not been adopted early by the group:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021)
Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective 1 January 2020)
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material (effective 1 January 2020)
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments'to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) (effective 1 January 2020)
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) (effective 1 January 2021)
Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘leases’ ~ Covid 19 related rent concessions (effective 1 June 2020)
A number of narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 17 and some annual improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS
_ 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16 (effective 1 January 2022)
_» Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements’ on c13351ﬂcat10n of liabilities (effective 1 January 2022)

" Basis of consolidation

@) . Subsidiaries
. . \ . i
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when -
- the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvemerit with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on Wthh control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the .
equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities ‘assumed in a -
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by- acqmsmon basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests proporticnate
.share of the recogmsed amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.‘

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair valueat the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
‘are recognised in proﬁt or loss. .

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not re-measured, and its subsequent. settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling.interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued) .

Basis of consolidation A(continued) .

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in-their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equnty Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. .

(¢)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control
is-lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts prevxously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equlpment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices, leasehold-improvements and laboratories. Property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are 1nc]uded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be méasured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. :

No depreciation is charged on land, nor on assets in the course of construction until such time as they are brought into use. For
all other assets depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less their estimated residual values, on a straight line basis over the
expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned, or the life of the project, whichever is earlier. The principal annual rates
used are as follows: .

- : . %
Buildings —_— 2-125
Plant and machinery : - 10
Fixtures, fittings and computer equipment - 10-25
Motor vehicles ' . E 25

The assets’ residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determmed by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised w1th1n
administrative expenses in‘the income $tatement.

~

Capitalisation of finance costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqmsmon construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to-get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. .



Almac Group Limited o o o .25

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1. Accountmg policies (contmued)
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated-impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relatmg to the
entity sold. .

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purposes of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash~generat1ng units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in whxch the
goodwﬂl arose. : .

: Computer software and software under development

The costs of acquiring and bringing into use computer software are capltahsed and amortlsed on a straight- lme ba51s over the
- estimated useful economic life of the software which is between three to ten years.

Capitalised software_development costs include external direct costs of material and services together with direct labour costs
relating to software development. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or-sell the software product are
available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be rehably measured

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as mcuxred Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the softwaré product include the software development employee costs -
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recogmsed as an asset in a subsequent
period. . :

Product licences

" Product licences acquired are capitalised and amortised over their useful economic life which is between one to twelve years.
They are carried at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Research and development

Expenditure on research is written off in the year in Wthh it is incurred. Development expendlture is capitalised when the
criteria for recognising an asset are met.

Research and development tax credits

Under UK tax legislation introduced in the 2013 Finance Bill research and development credits can be claimed against qualifying
research and development expenditure. Where these credits are not expected to be restricted by the PAYE/NI cap included within
the legislation then the credit is, in substance, a government grant. The group has elected to treat such credits as a government
grant and recognise the credits in the same period as the research and development expenditure arises.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)
1 ' Accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life, for. example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell,
and value in use. For the purposes-of assessing impairment, assets are grouped by cash generating unit. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

At each balance sheet date non-financial assets not camed at fair value are assessed to determme whether there is an indication
that the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) may be impaired. If there is such an indication, thé recoverable amount of the
asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is compared to the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit).

The recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Value in use is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax obtainable as a result of the
asset’s (or asset’s cash generating unit) continued use. These cash flows are discounted usmg a pre-tax discount rate: that
represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

~If the recoverable amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the

carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss daccount, unless
the asset has been revalued when the amount is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously
recognised revaluation. Thereafter, any excess is recognised in profit and loss account.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or asset’s cash generating unit) is increased to
the ‘revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior.periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recogmsed in the profit and loss account.

.

Financial assets
. . 1 a
Financial instruments

A ﬁnanmal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one party and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another party. Financial assets of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and favourable
derivative financial instruments. Financial liabilities of the Company include trade and other payables, borrowings and
unfavourable derivative financial instruments. S

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial posmon when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual obligations of the instrument.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

i) Those to be measured at amortised costs; and
ii)  Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income of through profit
and loss).

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. The Company reclassifiés its ﬁnanc1a1 assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transacnon costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value’ through proﬁt or loss, other ﬁnancral liabilities at amortised
cost or as derivatives.
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Notes to the f' nancial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

1 Accountmg pohcnes (continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised at fair valile plus, in the case of financial instruments not at fair value through profit and loss
(i.. loans and receivables and other financial liabilities), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to financial liabilities which are measured at fair value (i.e. fair
value through profit and loss or derivatives) are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to recognition, financial assets and liabilities are measured according to the ca;egory to which they are classified.

(a)  Financial assets

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing those financial assets and
the cash flow characteristics of those financial assets. The Company only has financial assets classified at amortised cost. These
assets are those held for contractual collection of cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest and are held at amortised cost. Any gains or losses arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss.

(b)- Finaneial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

- Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is elther held for tradmg or it is de51gnated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 11ab1hty and is included in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the i income statement.

(¢)  Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables and borrowings (including amounts due to telated parties) are classified as other financial liabilities
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method (see below).

Effective interest method

- The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
and expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the €xpected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropnate a shorter penod to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised.on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as FVTPL.
Derecognition -

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred-asset,
the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. )

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

.
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‘Notes to the ﬁhancial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Imﬁairment of a financial asset

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. For trade receivables the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the receivables. For other receivables the Company applies the
three stage model to determine expected credit losses.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value amounts disclosed in these financial statements represent the Company’s estimate of the price at which a financial
instrument could be exchange in an arm’s length market transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no
compulsion to act. They are point-in-time estimates that may change in subsequent reporting periods due to market conditions
or other factors. Fair value is determined by reference to quoted prices in the most advantageous active market for that instrument
to which the Company has immediate access. However, where there is no active market for the Company’s financial instruments,
the Company determines fair value based on internal or external valuation models, such as stochastic models, option-pricing
models and discounted cash flow models. These calculations represent management’s best estimates based on a range of methods
and assumptions. Since they are based on estimates the fair values may not be realised in an actual sale or immediate settlement
. of the instruments.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses ar€ incurred only
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be rehably estimated. .

Ev1dence of 1mpa1rment may include mdlcatxons that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
ﬂows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. -

Provisions

. e
Provisions for medical-claims under the group’s self-insured medical scheme are recognised where: the group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
consndenng the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any ‘one item included in the same class of obligations is small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks spec1ﬁc to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised .
as interest expense. .
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued)
‘Investments in subsidigries

Investments in subsidiaries are held as non- current assets and are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consrderatlon
paid, less any provision for impairment. An impairment loss is récognised for the amount by whlch the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. - . ,

3

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour;, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net reahsable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of the business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as noncurrent assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the group statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and bank
overdrafts. In the group balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Current and deferred income tax : ) -

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
" other comprehensnve income or.directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
“date in the countries where the group’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes .
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. - i

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax- habrhty is settled. .

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences ariSing on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and

it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on éither the taxable entity of different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.



Almac Group Limited ' : 30

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

1 Accountlng policies (contmued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemptlon value is recognised in the
. income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are récognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable

that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent

there is no €vidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre- payment
- for liquidity servrces and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current habllmes unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the habrhty for
_at least twelve months after the ba]ance sheet date.

Trade and o'ther payables

Trade payables are obllgatlons to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordmary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recogmsed mmally at fair va]ue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effecnve
interest method.

Grants ‘ 4

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the group will
comply with all attached conditions. Grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credlted to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful economic lives of the related assets. . : .

Non-controlling interests

Losses applicable to a minority shareholder in a consolidated subsidiary are allocated against the maj'on'ty interest exc’ept to the
.extent that the minority has a binding obligation, and is financially able to cover losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports

profits, such profits are allocated to the majority shareholders until the minority’s share of losses prevrously absorbed by the

majority has been recovered.

- Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs drrectly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as’
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the fi nancxal statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

1 Accounting pollcles (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of services in the ordinary course

of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax and after eliminating sales within the Company. :

The Company has four key revenue streams, sales of goods, sale of goods with installation and/or training, sale of fire safety

systems and servicing. The Company s performance obligations and revenue recognition policy for each revenue stream is noted
: below :

a) Sale of goods '

N
For contracts for the sale of an 1nd1v1dual item, the performance obligation is the acceptance or delivery of the item. For
.contract with more than one item, the performance obligation is elther

i) " The acceptance or delivery of each individual item where each item is considered distinct; or -
ii) The acceptance or delivery of the final item where the goods are not distinct.

Revenue is recognised at the pomt in time when the customer obtains control of the goods which is based on the delivery terms
of the contract .

b) Sale of goods with installation and/or training

Delivery of goods, installation services and training services are treated as Separate performance obhgatlons as the customer can
benefit from each separately and they are separate promises within the contracts.

Revenue in respect of goods is in line with ‘a) Sales ‘of goods’. Revenue in respect of installation is recognised over the period
of the installation service and revenue in respect of training is recognised over the period of the training as installation services
enhance customer assets, whilst training & services are simultaneously received and consumed by the customer.

) Servicing of safety equipment,

The company carries out services on a variety of safety products to meet the periodic service requirements under maritime law.

The performance obligation is the completion of these services. These services do not meet the criteria to be recognised over-
time as i) the company only has the right to payment on completion of the service, ii) the company is not enhancing or creating

an asset and iii) the customer does not simultaneously receive and consume the benefits as performance progressed as the-service

has to be fully completed by the company and performance to date could not be re-performed by another party. ’

_Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in UK
pound sterling, which is the group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualrfymg cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate-to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within ‘finance income or cost All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within
adrmmstratlve expenses ) )
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting policies (contlr'lued)
‘ Forelgn currency translatlon (contmued)

The results and ﬁnanc1al posmon of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hypennﬂatxonary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

e  all resulting currency translation differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in a currericy translation
reserve.

Employee benefit trust

The group’s share of the assets of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac Offshore Employee Benefit Trust, which
are both employee benefit trusts, have been incorporated within the group’s balance sheet under the appropriate asset categories.

Pension obligations

The group operates a defined contribution plan for employees whereby the group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available. -

Share-based payments

The group issues cash-settled phantom share-based payments to certain employees of the company for their services to the group.

The group accounts for these phantom share based payments as cash-settled phantom share-based payments which are measured

at fair value and recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals).

The fair values of these payments are measured at each reporting date using professional external valuers, in line with the terms

and conditions upon which the awards are granted. The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become

unconditionally entitled to the awards, subject to the group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse due to‘'employees
" leaving the group prior to vesting. The total amount recognised in the income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
_actual amount of awards that are expected to vest, except where forfeiture is due to employee’s termination of contract.

Leases ' ' A ‘ , )
Accounting policy applied until 1 October 2019 (IAS 17)

Rentals payable under operating léases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the economic * -
benefits from the lease asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operatmg leases are recognised as an expense in
the penod in which they are mcurred ,

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The -
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern on which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)
1 Accounting policies (continued).
Accounting policy a}')pli'ed Jrom 1 October 2019 (IFRS 16)

Deﬁmnon

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an asset (“the
underlying asset”) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey the right to the Group
to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is deemed to convey the right to control the underlying

asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

N

° Obtain substantially all the economié benefits from the use of the underlying asset; and
L Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Where contracts contain a lease coupled with an agreement to purchase or sell other goods or services (i.e., non-lease
components), the non-lease components are identified and accounted for separately from the lease component. The
consideration in the contract is allocated to the lease and non-lease components on a relative standalone price basis using the
principles in IFRS 15. :

The Group predominantly engages in leases for land and buildings, or commercial and motor vehicles. The majority (Sf leases
for the Group-are located in the UK and Ireland as a result of the manufacturing and office locations.

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group mmally recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a nght -of-use asset for the right
to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably certain), expected amount of residual
value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered reasonably certam) and variable lease payments
that depend on an index or rate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives
received, the Group’s initial direct costs (€.g., commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date, the Group measures' the lease liability by:

(@)  Increasing the carrying amount to reﬂect interest on the lease liability;

(b)  Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(c)  Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in substance
fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific events.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges dre included in finance cost in the income statement, unless the
costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset applying other applicable standards. Variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers them arises.

The-related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in accordance with
the depreciation requirements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the accounting: policy for Property,
Plant and Equipment. Adjustments are made to the carrying value of the right of use asset where the lease liability is re-
‘measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
assets as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.
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Notes to the financnal statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

1 Accountmg policies (contmued)
Accounting policy applied from 1 October 2019 (IFRS 16) (continued)
Lease.mocliﬁcations

If a lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. If a lease continues to
exist, the lease modification will result in either a separate lease or a change in the accounting for the existing lease.

The modification is aécounted_ for as a separate lease if both:

(@ The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and
(b)  The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original lease and a
separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases. If either of the conditions
are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for.as a separate lease and the consideration is allocated to the contract and the
lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modlﬁed lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date
of the modification. .

For a modification that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g., reduces the square footage of leased space),
IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full termination of the
lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to recognise the
amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right-of-use asset w1thout affecting
profit or loss

Short term and low value leases . N : )

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, -not to recognise lease assets and lease
liabilities for leases w1th a lease term of 12 months or less (1 €., short-term leases). .

Lease payments on short term leases are accounted for on a straight line bases over the term of the lease or other systematic
basis if considered more appropriate. Short term lease payments are included in operating expenses in the income statement.

Sub leases .

If an underlying asset is re-leased by the Group to a third party and the Group retains the primary obligation under the original
lease, the transaction is deemed to be a sublease. The Group continues to account for the original lease (the head lease) as a
 lessee and accounts for the sublease as a lessor. (intermediate lessor). When the head lease is a short term lease, the sublease is
classified as an operating lease. Otherwise; the sublease is classified using the classification criteria applicable to Lessor
Accounting in IFRS 16 by reference to the right-of-use asset in the head lease (and not the underlying asset of the head lease).

After classification lessor accounting is abplied to the sublease.
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Notespto the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (c()ntinued)
| 2 - Financial risk management |

Financial risk factors

The group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include price risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the
. financial performance of the group by monitoring the foregoing risks. : :

(a)  Market risk
(i)  Price risk

The group is not exposed to commodity pnce risk as a result of its operations nor is the group exposed to equ1ty securities price
risk as it holds no listed equity investments.

(ii) . Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings which are a combination of overdrafts, bank borrowings, term loans, loans
from related parties and finance lease liabilities (excluding lease liabilities arising on the adoption of IFRS 16). Interest bearing
assets consist of short-term bank deposits. Borrowings at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk. The group manages these risks by a mixture of variable
interest rates on overdrafts, bank borrowmgs and loans from related parties linked to LIBOR or UK Bank of England base rate
and fixéd rate interest on the group’s finance lease liabilities. The intérest rate is monitored on a regular basis with reference to
movements in global interest rates and the potential impact upon the group’s cost of borrowmg

_If average interest rates over the year had increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant the ﬁnanmal
statements would have been impacted as follows:

'2020 ) 2019
Impact on Impact on
post-tax - Impact on post-tax Impact on
profits equity profits equity
. £000 - £°000 ~ £000 ._£’000
Interest rates increase by 1% ’ C(254) (254) (193) (1‘93) .
Interest rates decrease by 1% : : T 254 254 193 193

(ii)  Foreignexchange risk

~ While the greater part of the group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in UK pound sterling, the group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk in the normal course of business in its overseas operations, principally on sales in US dollars and in Euros.
Group policy is to minimise the exposure of overseas subsidiaries to transaction risk by matching local currency income and
costs. While the group has not used financial instruments to date to hedge foreign exchange exposure, this position is kept
constantly under review.

If the US dollar had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the UK pound sterlmg spot rate on 30 September with all other
variables held constant, the financial statements would have been 1mpacted as follows: .

2020 ‘ 2019

Impact on . ' Impact on .
- post-tax Impact on post-tax Impact on
' profits equity . profits © equity
£000 £°000 £000 £000
US dollar weakens by 10% against UK pound sterling (4,046) -(4,046) (4,081)" (4,081)
US dollar strengthens by 10% against UK pound sterling 4,945 4,945 4,988 4,988

The figures above reflect retranslation of the group’s investment in foreign subsidiaries. The directors do not regard the group’s
foreign exchange exposure on sales in Euro as significant.
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-2 Financial risk management (continued)
(b)  Credit risk Y

The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. Credit
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
* The amount of exposure to individual customers is subject to limits, which are reassessed regularly by the Board. Credit risk also
arises from cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions. Banking arrangements are reviewed and regularly
- reassessed by the board.

(¢)  Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity reserve (comprising
undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. In addition, the group’s liquidity
‘management policy involves projecting cash flows in major.currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to
meet these; monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios agamst internal and external regulatory requirements; and maintaining debt’
financing plans.

3 Capital risk management

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in’ order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost -
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt/net funds divided b); total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (current and non-current) as shown in the group balance sheet less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the group balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 30 September were as follows:

2020 2019

Group - _ o B A £
Total borrowings (note 18) . : 85,_449,335' 24,155,949
Leés: cash and cash equivalents (note 17) ’ i (77,691,180j (27,401,069)
Net debt/(funds) . 7,758,155 (3.425,120)
Total equity B ' . 489,602,133 445,115,117
Total capital . ‘ T 497,360,288 441,869,997
Gearing ratio ' . 1.6% . (0.7%)

The group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate mix of debt and equity consistent with fulfilling long-term growth plané.
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4  Revenue ’

\-

Revenue is attributable to the group’s principal activities carried oﬁt in the United Kingdom, the United States of America, Asia
and the Republic of Ireland. No analy51s of revenue is presented as the directors consider such disclosure to be senously

prejudicial to the group ’s and company’s-interests.

Timing of revenue s as follows: 2020 2019
£ £
Point in Time 181,469,268 143,569,542
Over Time . 495,784,372 . 490,710,253
Total 677,253,640 634,279,795
5  Expenses by nature -
- 2020 2019
Group £ o
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress . (1,916,996) (2,777,619)
Raw materials and consumables used ’ 162,662,798 159,831,326
Employee benefits expense - net of capitalised software development costs (note 7) ' 289,555,078 260,200,632
Depreciation and amortisation ' 29,642,289 28,213,931
Depreciation on right of use assets_ _ 7,176,992 -
Transfer from capital grant reserve (note 20) (2,168,698) . (2,166,237)
Revenue grants ‘ (2,762,654) (2,494,252)
" Profit on disposal-of property, plant and equipment and intangibles - (24,753).
Operating lease payhents ' ' A - 6,176,208
Expense on short term leases 345,29.8 -
Other expenses* , 126,786,010 143,833,059
Total cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative expenses and research .
and development expenditure 609,320,117 590,792,295

*Research and development expenditure of £7,352,475 (2019: £7,801,474) is included within other expenses and is stated after
the deduction of £973,868 (2019: £1,049,181) of research and development tax credits. A further £3,856,209 (2019: £2,739 865)

of research and development tax credits has been deducted from other expenses.

Services provided by the group and company’s auditors and its associates

During the year the group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the group’s auditor and its

associates:
‘ 2020 2019 -

Group £ £
Fees payable to the group’s auditors for the audit of parent company and

consolidated financial statements 34,294 13,927
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and its associates for other services:

- the audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legi:slation 291,586 247,547

- tax services 221,689 235,905

- other services 17,800 47,725 .
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‘Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (cohtinued) :

6 Finance costs - net

5,466

- 5,150

2020 - 2019
Group £ £
Interest expense: '
Interest payable on bank borrowings (821,782) (778,275)
Interest payable on related party loans (5,366) (11,717)
Interest payable on other loans - (1,004)
Interest payable on finance leases (5,952) (6,391)
Interest payable on IFRS16 leases (2,216,570) : -
Foreign exéhange loss on financing activities -(1,052,104) - -
Other finance costs ’ ' (296,235) (441,604)
Finance costs (4,398,009) (1,239,491)
Interest income: .
Interest receivable on bank deposits 14,060 84,037
Foreign exchange gains on financing activities ) - 5,314,288
Finance income. 14,060 5,398,325 .
Finance (costs)/income - net (4,383,949) 4,158,834
7 Employees and directors A ‘
: Group _ Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Group and Company g £ £ £
Staff costs during the year: o .
' Wages and salaries (including capitalised software 257,896,746 231,278,003 18,176,167 15,978,852
development costs) '
Social security costs 21,702,171 19,922,651 1,933,953 1,793,459
Other pension costs (note 26) 7,943,844 6,853,470 771,946 665,071
Share based payrﬁent costs (note 30) 2,549,015 2,761,987 586,581 786,577
' 290,091,776 260,816,111 21,468,647 19,223,959
The wages and salary costs includes £536,698 (2019: £615,479) of capitalised labour costs:
Group . Company
2020 2019 2020 - 2019
" Group and Company Number Number I £
Average monthly number of persons employed . ‘
(including directors) during the year by activity: :
Production ‘ : 4,234 - 4,012 - -
Sales and marketing 239 230 - -
Administration 938 .845 404 392
Research and development 55 63 - -
404 392
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7 - Employees and directors (continued)

Key management compensation

. 2020 - 2019
Group . i : £ : £
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ' - 9,259,426 - 8,936,012
Pension costs - defined contributions plans ' : ‘ 182,479 ' 118,382
The key management coinpensation given above includes directors and senior managers. i ,
A o S : 2020 2019
Directors L g ' oo £ £
Aggregate emoluments ‘ - : - 2,430,283 2,522,985

Pension costs - defined contributions plans , 60,220 - 20,728 -

Four (2019: four) directors have retirement benefits accruing under a defined contribution plan. Four (2019: four) directors
have exercised phantom share options in the year. . ‘ : i

| | \ 2020 2019
Highest paid director ' . ' £ D £
Aggregate emoluments ‘ 793,247 756,586

The highest paid director exerciséd phantom share options in the year and during the previous year.

~ 8 ° Income tax expense C
. g 2020 © 2019

£ . £
Current tax ] ] i ,
UK corporation tax ) E ; .7,406,391 8:245,145
Overseas tax 685,061 228,057
Adjustment in respéct of previous periods ) ' ('317,156) (438,991)
Total current tax expense : R 7,774,296 8,034,211
Deferred tax ) .
Origination and reversal of temporary differences . ' : 2,799,287 - 473,690
Adjustment in respect of previous periods - 109,250 155,366
Total deferred tax charge (note 14) ' 2,908,537 629,056

“Income tax expense ' ‘ 10,682,833 8,663,267
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 S_eptel‘nbelf'2020 (continuéd)

8  Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the group’s profit before income tax differs from (2019: differs from) the theoretical amount that would arise using
. the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:.

2020 2019

£ £

“Profit before income tax — T 63549574 47,646,334

Profit before income tax at the UK standard rate of 19% (2019: 19%) - 12,074,419 9,052,803

Effects of: o . A‘ . ' , . -
(Income not taxable)/ expenses not deductible for tax purposes - (440,254) 246,332
Effect of changes in overseas tax rates - ) (187,899) 146,865
Movement in deferred tax not provided - ' (1,230,218)' . (197,629)

Group relief not paid : ' : 48520 . 55887

Adjustments in réspect of previous periods - . " (207,906) (283,625)
Changes in tax laws and rates ' : ' 923,765 (120,344)
Research and development tax credits R . " (297,594) (237,022)

Income tax expense ' ‘ T 10,682,833 8,663,267
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (contmued)

9 Property, plant and equlpment

- Fixtures,
- fittings
Assets in the and .
-Land and course of Plant and computer Motor .

. buildings -construction machinery equipment vehicles Total
Group £ £ £ £ £ £
Cost , )
At 1 October 2018 239,535,931 : 2,764,1‘44 - 112,509,185 52,442,208 414,775 407,666,243
Transfers | 1229473 (1,759,672) . 603,867 (73,668) - -
Additions 11,407,461 5,688,518 ' 20,373,575 8,887,124 36,182 . 46,392,860 -
Disposals (74,634) - (163,508) (342) (29,485) (267,969)
-Exchange adjustment 5,446,058 420 - 1,050,435 1,287,991 13,630 7,798,534

" At 1 October 2019 257,544,289 6,693,410~ 134,373,554 62,54_3,313 1435102 461,589,668

Transfers - 272242 (1,436,648) 1,094,435 68,649 ’ - (1,322)
Additions 9,188,085 3,183,136 19,179,679 ‘5,766,187 - 16,817 37,333,904
Disposals - - (424,499) (15,926) - (440,425)
Exchange adjustment (4,107,955)  (4,648,746) . (6,663,991) (5,403,472) 7 (69,693)  (20,893,857)
At 30 September 2020 262,896,661 3,791,152 147,559,178 62,958,751 382,226 477,587,968
Accumulated depreciation . . . ,
At 1 October 2018 46,032,436 - 64,511,632 36,086,024 314,863 146,944,955 .
Charge forthe year 5,972,703 - 8,639,597 4,938,073 . 40,438 19,590,811
Disposals - ) - - (140,761) ' - (29,485)  (170,246)
Exchange adjustment 1,133,877 - 683,729 - 982,097 12,370 2,812,073
At 1 October 2019 53,139,016 - 73,694,197 42,006,194 338,186 169,177,593
Charge for the year 5,422,665 - 10,094,181 5,560,071 34,607 21,111,524
Disposals - - (418,933) (7,642) - (426,575)
Exchange adjustment (4,511,565) - - (7,990,998)  (4,806,723) (64,135) (17,373,421)
At 30 September 2020 54,050,116 - 75,378,447 42,751,900 308,658 172,489,121
Net book amdunt :
At 30 September 2020 208,846,545 3,791,152 72,180,731 20,206,851 73,568 305,098,847
At30 September 2019 204,405273 6,693,410 60,679,357 20,537,119 96,916 = 292,412,075
At 30 September 2018 193,503,495 . 2,764,144 47,997,553 16,356,184 99,912 260,721,288

Boﬁowings totélling £25,723,442 (2019: £23,709,504) are secured against the above assets (noie 18):

Interest costs of £nil (2019: £nil) were capitalised dunng the year. Cumulative interest capnahsed pre accumulated
depreciation at 30 September 2020 was £1,082,459 (2019: £1,082,459).

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.
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9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases had the following net book amount:

2020

A 2019
) Total Total
Group £ £
Cost 2,930,914 3,912,988
Accumulated 'depreciation (2,930,914) ' (3,513,113)
Net book amount ’ - 399,875
Fixtui'es,
fittings and
Land and Plant and computer - Motor
oL buildings Machinery equipment vehicles Total
Company £ £ £ £ £
~ Cost _ ' )
At 1 October 2018 4,028,962 3,061,468 - 8,528,108 102,289 15,720,827
Transfers 79,473 - (79,473) - -
Additions - 49,868 1,664,359 - 1,714,227
Disposals (74,634) - . . (74,634)
At 1 October 2019 4,033,801 3,111,336 10,112,994 102,289 17,360,420
Additions 14,710 1135173 - 750,128 8,225 1,908,236
Disposals - - (8,000) - © (8,000)
At 30 September 2020 4,048,511 4,246,509 10,855,122 110,514 19,260,656
T
Accumulated depreciation A )
At 1 October 2018 312,180 1,615,636 4,1'2.8,883 54,480 6,111,179
Charge for the year 51,060 164,944 1,116,960 10,905 1,343,869
At 1 October 2019 . 363,240 1,780,580 5,245,843 65,385 . 7,‘455,048
Charge for the year . 50,543 165,002 1,117,605 11,640 1,344,790
At 30 September 2020 413,783 1,945,582 6,363,448 77,025 8,799,838 .'
Net book amount . .
At 30 September 2020 3,634,728 2,300,927 ‘4,49,1,67.4 33,489 10,460,818
At 30 September 2019 . 3,670,561 1,330,756 . 4,867,151 36,904 9,905,372
At 30 September 2018 3,716,782 1,445,832 " 4,399,225 ) 47,809~ 9,609,648

Borrowings totalling £21,828,446 (2019: £18,615,587) are secured against the above assets (note 18).

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.
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-9 Property, plant énd 'equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases had the following net book amount: '

Fixtures,

v

Fixtures,
fittings and fittings and
computer computer
equipment equipment
2020 . 2019
Company £ £
Cost : - 629,500
Accumulated depreciation - (629,500)
Net book amount - -
10  Right of use assets '
; Fixtures,
fittings and -
Land & ° Plant and computer Motor .
buildings  machinery ' -equipment - vehicles - Total
Group £ £ £ C £ £
Cost
At 1 October 2019 _ - - - - -
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 55,703,753 287,210 753,829 - 693,467 57,438,259
Additions 6,258,948 46,650 183,537 208,773 6,697,908
Disposals ' (2,881,559) (8,599) (67,435) (1,663)  (2,959,256)
- Exchange adjustment (1,319,049) 3,552 (10,970) (10,029)  (1,336,496)
At 30 September 2020 57,762,093 328,813 - 858,961 890,548 59,840,415
Accumulated depreciétion
At 1 October 2019 oo- - . - - -
Charge for the year 6,381,693 134,451 = 344,862 315,986 7,176,992
Disposals (574,343) " (8,599) (37,840) (1,663) (622,445)
Exchange adjustment (65,669) 1,535 ) 241 (728) (64,621)
At 30 September 2020 5,741,681 127,387 307,263 313,595 6,489,926
Net book amount
At 30 September 2020

52,020,412 201,426 551,698 576,953

Depreciation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.

53,350,489
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10 Righvt of use assets (continued)

Fixtures,
. fittings and.
Land and computer Motor
buildings  equipment Vehicles Total -
Company £ £ £ £
Cost '
At 1 October 2019 , - - - -
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 3,611,823 30,682 ' 156,714 3,799,219
Additions - 4,016 51,625 55,641
Disposals - (729) (923) (1,652)
At 30 September 2020 3,611,823 33,969 207,416 3,853,208
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2019 - - - . -
Charge for the year - 300,960 10,097 88,320 399,377
Disposals ' - (729) (923) (1,652)
At 30 September 2020 300,960 9,368 87,397 - 397,725
Net book amount .
At 30 September 2020 3,310,863 24,601 120,019 3,455,483
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11  Goodwill

Group =~ ' ' o : £

~Cost o ' ‘ '

At 1 October 2018 - - 87,442,955
On acquisition’ - ' ) _ ) S . : 48,790
Exchange adjustment ’ - 1,689,153
At 1 October 2019 : . o ‘ 89,180,898
On acquisition ° o , : S (34,729)
Exchange adjustment . ' ' ' ' ’ " (1,399,908)
At 30 September 2020 ' ‘ 87,746,261

4

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ‘ .
At 1 October 2018 and 1 October 2019 and at 30 September 2020 : . : 4,910,114

Net book amount T ' _ o
At 30 September 2020 . : . B 82,836,147

At 30 September 2019 . . ) ' . . 84,270,784
At 30 September 2018 ‘ . : . 82,532,841

. £58.7m (2019: £60.2m) of goodwill relates to the group’s clinical services business. The group’s clinical services business,

" together with the UK clinical services business in Almac Group (UK) Limited, is regarded as a cash-generating unit (CGU). The
recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management and covering a five year period. Growth rates of 2 to 8% (2019:
1 to 5%) with a consistent gross margin were used for the five year period. Cash flows beyond the five year period are established
using-estimated growth rates of 2% (2019: 2%), which reflects the group’s investment strategy and expansion. Management
determined budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its expectations of market developments: The discount rate ™
used of 11% (2019: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects specific. risks relating to the group. There is sufficient headroom in the
impairment calculation. v . .

‘The remaining goodwill is arisihg‘on business combinations in the year ended 30 September 2020.
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12 Other intangible assets

Product Computer
licences software Total
Group £ ’ £ £
- Cost
At 1-October 2018 29,751,434 70,814,706 100,566,140
- Additions 140,983 4,810,104 4,951,087
Disposals (33,451) . (33,451)
Exchange adjuétment 275,273 1,135,866 - 1,411,139
At 1 October 2019 30,134,239 76,760,676 106,894,915
Transfers - ) 1,322 1,322
Additions 408,632 5,639,643 6,048,275
Exchange adjustment (531,704) (2,072,450) ‘ (2,604,1 54)
At 30 September 2020 30,011,167 80,329,191 110,340,358
Accumulated amortisation
. At 1 October 2018 24,572,981 41,706,440 66,279,421
Amortisation in the year 1,215,447 7,407,673 8,623,120
. Disposals (2,534) - (2,534)
Exchange adjustment 160,245 924,288 ' 1,084,533
At 1 October 2019 25,946,139 50,038,401 75,984,540
Amortisation in the year 1,216,056 7,314,709 8,530,765
Exchange adjustment (449,915) (1,887,293) (2,337,208)
At 30 September 2020 - 26,712,280 55,465,817 82,178,097
Net book amount
At 30 September 2020 3,298,887 24,863,374 28,162,261
* At 30 September 2019 4,188,100 26,722,275 30,910,375
At 30 September 2018 5,178,453 29,108,266

Amortisation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement.

34,286,719
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

12 Other intangible assets (continued)

At 30 September 2018

Comliuter
software
.. Company £
" "Cost
At 1 October 2018 6,082,210.
Additions 162 534
At 1 October 2019 6,244,744
Additions 788,791
At 30 September 2020 7,033,535
Accumulated amortisation
* At 1 October 2018 ‘ 4,508,056
Amortisation in the year 580,977
At 1 October 2019 5,089,033
Amortisation in the year 619,256
At 30 September 2020 5,708,289
Net book amount
At 30 September 2020 1,325,246
At 30 September 2019 1,155,711
At 30 September 2018 1,574,154
Amortisation expense is included within administrative expenses in the income statement. . -
13  Investments in subsidiaries
Company . £
Cost _
At 1 October 2018, 1 October 2019 and 30 September 2020 177,312,970
Provisions for impairment. .
At 1 October 2018, 1 October 2019 and 30 September 2020 1,692,057
Net book ambunt
At 30 September 2020 175,620,913
At 30 September 2019 175,620,913
173,401,018
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued).

13 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid, less any
provisions for impairments. The subsidiaries of the group at 30 September 2020 were: '

Proportion of

Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
Country of shares held shares held
Name incorporation Nature of business by the parent by the group
Almac Discovery Limited Northemn Ireland! Discovery and
development of 100% 100%
innovative approaches
to the treatment of
: cancer
Almac Diagnostic Services Limited Northem Ireland! Development of cancer 1% 99%
(formerly Almac Diagnostics Limited) diagnostics and
. microarray based data
: analysis
Almac Diagnostic Services LLC United States of Development of cancer 0% 100%
America'® diagnostics and
microarray based data
analysis
Almac Sciences Limited Northern Ireland? Provision of custom 0% 100%
. : chemical synthesis
services
Almac Sciences LLC United States of Provision of custom 0% 100%
: America'® . chemical synthesis
. services
Almac Sciences (Scotland) Limited Scotland® Provision of custom 0% 100%
chemical synthesis
. services ' .
Almac Clinical Services Limited Northem Ireland! Provision of services to 0%. 100%
) pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
. companies
Almac Clinical Services LLC United States of Provision of services to 0% 100% .
America'® pharmaceutical and
’ biotechnology
. : companies
Almac Clinical Technologies LLC United States of Management of clinical 0% 100%
, America'l trials drug supply
Almac Clinical Technologies Limited Northemn Ireland! Management of clinical 0% 100%
trials drug supply .
Almac Pharma Services Limited Northern Ireland' Manufacture of 0% 100%
’ pharmaceutical
products
Almac Pharma Services LLC United States of Manufacture of 0% 100%
America’® pharmaceutical
} ' products
Galen Limited Northemn Ireland! Distribution and sale of 50% 100%
: pharmaceutical
. : products
Almac Central Management LLC United States of Central administrative 0% 100%
: America'® services for the US
. group
Almac Pharmaceutical Services PTE Ltd Singapore’ Provision of services to 0% 100%
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
: companies
Almac Pharmaceutical Services KK Japan® Provision of services to 0% 100%

pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
companies
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13  Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Limited)

biotechnology
companies

Proportion of Proportion of
- ordinary ordinary
Country of shares held shares held
Name incorporation Nature of business by the parent by the group
Almac Group (Asia) PTE Ltd Singapore’ Holding company 100% 100%
Almac Group (UK) Limited Northern Ireland! _ Holding company 100% -100%
Almac Group Incorporated United States of Holding company 100% 100%
America'? ‘
Almac (No. 2) Limited Northem Ireland’ Dormant company 100% 100%
Galen US Incorporated United States of Distribution and sale of 0% 100%
America'® pharmaceutical
products
Novis Pharma Limited Northem Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
Napsco Limited Northem Ireland ! Dormant company 0% 100%
CTS Analytical Limited Northemn Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
Syngal Limited Northern Irelang! Dormant company 0% 100%
Quchem Limited "Northern Ireland’ Dormant company L 0% 100%
~ Almac Diagnostics (2004) Limited Northern Ireland’ Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac Trustees Limited Northern Ireland! Holding company 0% . 100%
2007 Gal Limited Northem Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
InterGal Pharma Limited Northemn Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac (No. 1) Limited Northern Ireland? Dormant company 0% 100%
Nelag Limited Northern Ireland! Dormant company 0% 100%
Chargelink Limited England® Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen Pharmaceuticals Limited England® Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen'Healthcare Limited - England® Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen Rhodes Limited England® * Dormant company 0% 100%
Galen Specialty Pharma US LL.C United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
America'®
Almac Realty Holdings LLC United States of Holding company 0% 100%
' America'® :
Clinical Trial Services Incorporated United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
America'? T
Applied Clinical Concepts Incorporated United States of Dormant company 0% 100%
. . : America'*
Arran Chemical Company Limited Republic of Ireland?  Manufacture of 0% 100%
pharmaceutical
products
Ventureland Limited Republic of Ireland?>  Dormant company 0% 100%
Almac Pharmaceuticals Group (Ireland) Republic of Ireland*  Holding company 100% 100%
Limited ’
Almac Pharma Services (Ireland) Limited Republic of Ireland®”  Provision of services to 0% 100%
’ ' pharmaceutical and
biotechnology
. companies
Almac Clinical Services (Ircland) Limited Republic of Ireland®  Provision of services to 0% 100%
pharmaceuticaland
biotechnology
' companies
Bioclin Research Laboratories Limited Republic of Ireland®*  Dormant Company 0% 100%
(formerly Almac Sciences (Ireland)
Limited )
Almac Sciences (Ireland) Limited Republic of Provision of services to 0% 100%
(formerly Bioclin Research Laboratories Ireland! pharmaceutical and
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13  Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of

Proportion of

ordinary ‘ordinary
Country of shares held shares held
Name incorporation Nature of business by the parent by the group
Camla (No.1) Pharma Ireland Limited Republic of Ireland Provision of services to 0% 100%
(formerly MPI Europharma Limited) pharmaceutical and
' biotechnology
: ) companies :
. POA Pharma Scandinavia AB Sweden!? Distribution and sale of 0% 100%
. pharmaceutical
. ) . products
POA Pharma North America LLC USAY Distribution and sale of 0% 100%
pharmaceutical
. products
'The registered office of these entities is Almac House, 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Craigavon BT63 5QD
The registered office of these entities is Units 1-3 Monksland Industrial Estate, Athlone, Co. Roscommon, N37 DN24
3The registered office of these entities is Finnabair Industrial Estate, Dundalk Co. Louth, A91 POKD
“The registered office of these entities is Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, D02 X576 ‘
SThe registered office of this entity is Suite 2, Stafford House, Strand Road, Portmarnock Co Dublin, D13 H525 °
®The registered office of these entities is Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London, EC2A 2HA
"The registered office of these entities is Lee & Lee, 50 Raffles Place, #60-00, Singapore Land Tower, Singapore, 048623
®The registered office of this entity is Tokyo Club Building, 11F, 3-2-6 Kasumigaski, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 100-0013 ’
9The registered office of this entity is 4th Floor, Saltire Court, 20 Castle Terrace, Edinburgh, Lothian, EH1 2EN
'OThe registered office of these entities is Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centreville Rd, Suite 400, Wnlmmgton
Delaware, DE 19808
'The registered office of this entity is CSC, 103 Foulk Road, Suite 103, Wilmington, DE 19803 3742
12The registered office of this entity is 011 Allen Building, Durham, NC 27708
BThe registered office of this entity is Ebbe Lieberathsgatan 21, 40022 Gotenborg, Box 24026, Sweden
The registered office of this entity is IDA Business and Technology Park Garrycastle,-Athlone, Co. Westmeath N37 XO61
Ireland
15 The registered office of this entity is 4400 NE 77" Avenue, Suite 275, Vancouver, WA 98662 -
14 Deferred income tax
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
Assets - ) Liabilities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Group £ £ I £ £ £
At 1 October 2,054,227 1,904,034° (11,596,508) (10,727,138) - (9,542,281)  (8,823,104)
Exchange adjustm;ent - - 66,870 (90,121) 66,870 (90,121)
Charged to the income (911,081) . 150,193 (1,997,456) (779,249) (2,908,537) (629,056)
statement
Arising on adoption of IFRS (535,013) - 665,008 - 129,995 -
16 :
Transfer from asset to 98,410 - (98,410) - - -
liability
At 30 September 706,543 2,054,227 (12,960,496) (11,596,508) (12,253,953)  (9,542,281)
2020 2019
Company £ £
At 1 October . 774,260 1,111,123
(Charged)/credited to the income statement (317,186) (336,863)
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 (555,484) -
At 30 September (98,410) 774,260
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14 . Deferred income tax (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: :
’ Accelerated Other

, capital Tax temporary

‘ : ' allowances losses  differences Total
Group - deferred tax (liabilities)/assets . EY EY £ £
At 1 October 2018 (Restated)(*) (19,540,485) 6,212,055 4,505,326 (8,823,104)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement (Restated)(*) (979,564) 169,828 180,680 - (629,056) .
Exchange adjustments - . (90,121) = (90,121)
At 1 October 2019 (Restated)(*) ) (20,520,049) 6,291,762 4,686,006 (9,542,281)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 122,764 (3,354,362) 323,061 (2,908,537)
Arising on the adoption IFRS 16 . 597,886 : (8,280) (459,611) 129,995
Exchange adjustments _ _ 4 - 66,870 : - 66,870
At 30 September 2020 : (19,799,399) 2,995,990 4,549,456  (12,253,953)

(*) In 2018 and 2019 the tax losses column included all unused tax losses. To the extent those losses were unable to be
recognised as a deferred tax asset, a deferred tax liability was included in the other temporary differences column. The amount
presented in the tax losses column should have been the net amount recognised. As a result the 2018 and 2019 comparative
information has been restated as follows: '

. Before Restatement " After
Tax losses . _ i £ £ £
2018 14,530,012 (8,317,957) 6,212,055
2019 i 14,423,186 (8,131,424) 6,291,762
Other temporary differenceé -
2018 (3,812,631) 8,317,957 4,505,326

2019 ) . ) (3,445,418) 8,131,424 4,686,006

~ This restatement did not changé the net deferred tax liability as at 30 September 2018 or 2019, nor did this restatement have
any impact on reported primary statements for the year ended 30 September 2018 or 2019.

Other  Accelerated

temporary capital
. differences allowances Total
Company - deferred tax assets/(liabilities) £ £ E
At 1 October 2018 ’ (281,760) 1,392,883 1,111,123
(Charged)/credited to the income statement ' 10,788 (347,651) (336,863)
At 1 October 2019 ) (270,972) 1,045,232 774,260
Charged to the income statement . (70,498) (246,688) (317,186)
Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 ' ' (503,593) (51,891) (555,484) -

At 30 September 2020 _ (845,063) 746,653 (98,410)
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14 Deferred income tax (continued)

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Deferred tax assets: .
- to be recovered after more than 12 months . 706,543 2,054,227 746,653 1,045,232
706,543 2,054,227 746,653 1,045,232
Deferred tax liabilities:
- to be recovered after more than 12 months ' - (12,960,496)  (11,596,508) (845,063) (270,972)
. (12,960,496) (11,596,508) (845,063) (270,972)
Deferred tax (Iiabilities)/assets -net . T (12,253,953) (9,542,281) . (98,410) . 774,260

Deferred income tax assets aré recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable
benefits is probable. Deferred income tax assets not recognised are comprised as follows:

Group Company
2020 . 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
'Accelerated capital allowances 41,667 58,262 41,667 58,262
Tax losses ) 8,555,750 14,851,463 - -
Other temporary differences ' 181,867 151,382 - -
‘ 8,779,284 15,061,107 41,667 58,262

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above as in the dpinion of the directors it may not be recoverable in
the foreseeable future. The potential deferred tax assets will be recognised when it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be sufficient taxable profits from which the tax losses, accelerated capital allowances and other temporary differences
can be deducted. . '

" 15 Inventories

‘ 2020 2019

Group S - ' . o £ ) £
Raw materials 12,326,320 13,194,984
Work in progress 2,855,659 3,247,495
Finished goods - o , 15,284,428 12,975,596
' 30,466,407 29,418,075

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £160,745,802 (2019: £157,053,709).

During the year £373,248 of inventory provisions were reversed as they were not used (2019: £292,266).
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16 Trade and other receivables ' o )
Group Company
_ 2020 2019 - 2020 2019
Current : : £ £ £ £
Trade receivables : ’ }23,879,666 122,709,428 - U
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (2,083,043) (2,356,132) - -
Trade receivables (net) - 121,796,623 120,353,296 - . - -
Amounts owed by group undertakmgs (note 31) . . - . 266,057,266 " 278,623,245 ‘
Fmance lease receivables : - - - 1,037,014 -
Other receivables : . 5,721,223 _ 5,925,865 742,165 667,370
~ Prepayments and accrued income 33,835,145 28,074,814 3,092,732 3,128,834

161,352,991 154,353,975 ,270',929,177 282,419,449

" Trade receivables includes an amount of £4,770, 145 (2019: £7,279,645) in respect of receivables subject to invoice discounting.

The fair values of trade and other recelvables are not matenally different from their carrying value For the purposes of [FRS 9
“Financial instruments”, all of the group’s and parent company’s financial assets are classified as measured at amortised cost.

. Group . Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
Non-Current o o A PR £ - & £
Finance lease receivables‘ ' - - 13,063,678 ' T

The finance lease receivables arise in respect of leases of property to other group undertakmgs The lease recelvable under
- these lease agreements are shown in the table below:

: £

Receivable in: ' .
2021 B 1,472,568
12022 ' : : ' 1,472,568
2023 IR o o 1,472,568
2024 : o : © 1,472,568
2025 : . _ : - 1,472,568
Thereafter 4 o o ' 9,446,979
- ‘ ' 16,809,819
Less: future interest income - . T (2,709,127)

14,100,692
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued) | |

The carrying amount of the group’s and parent company’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
Group Company ‘
2020 2019 2020 - 2019
£ ot £ s

Currency ) . ‘
UK pound sterling ' ' o 60,386,342 67,771,678 113,583,152 105,261,723
US dollar . ‘ ~ 83,707,718 73,182,727 137,160,864 136,305,949
Euro - i : 17,258,931 13,399,570 33,248,839 . 34,020,157
Singapore doliar ‘ . . - - 6,230,794
Japanese yen » . o ' _— : - - 600,826
‘ 161,352,991 154_,353,975 283,992,855 282,419,449_

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable above. -
Trade receivables impaired and the amount of the impairment provision at 30 September 2020 was £2,083,043 (2019:
£2,356,132). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to invoices for which there is uncertainty over recoverability.

It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The trade receivables that were impaired were all -
overdue by more than two months

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Group . Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

. o £ £ £ £

At 1 October o 2,356,132 2,149,045 - ' -
Exchange adjustment - . (77,502) 16,054 - " -

Provision for receivables impairment . ‘ 768,974 1,038,124 - ’ -

Receivables written off during the 'y'ear as uncollectible (102,118) (342,758) - - -

Unused amounts reversed 862,443)  (504333) . - .
At 30 September 2,083,043 2,356,132 - -

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in administrative expenses in the income
statement

" The group has recognised the following assets relating to contracts with customers (these are all included with accrued

income):
2020 2019
. . £ £
Contract assets recognised at start of the period . ' . 14,185,652 16,056,947
Revenue recognised in prior periods that was invoiced in the current period (14,136,464). (15,019,738)
;\er;tizt;:ts recognised in revenue in the current period that will be invoiced in future 20117217 13,148,443
Balance at the end of the pet'iod 20,166,405 14,185,652

e LONtract assets are expected to_be. 1nv01ced in the year to 30 September 2021
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)' |

The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measurmg expected credxt losses Wthh uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress-and have substantially the sarne risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 12 months before 30 September and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect cirrent and
forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. On that
basis, the loss allowance as at 30 September 2020 was deemed to be not materially different to that provision camed under IAS
39. The default rate on recelvables is less than.1%.

The group applies the practical expedient in IFRS 9 (which allows the group to measure impairment using the 12 month Expected -
Credit Loss model)-in respect of amounts owed by group undertakings, for those balances that meet the following requirements:
it has a low risk of default
‘the counterparty is considered, in the short term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations in the near term; and
e the group expects, in'the longer term, that adverse changes in economlc and business conditions might, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability- of the counterparty to fulfil its obhgauons

For those balances where there is a higher risk of default the group follows the 3 stage approach within IFRS 9 to determine
lifetime expected credit losses. :

17  Cash and cash equivalents

Group' . ‘ Company
2020 2019 2020 - 2019
‘ £ £ T 2 £
Cash at bank and in hand 56,991,404 21,015,054 20,291,960 < .
Short term deposits 20,699;776 ' 6,386,015 - 14,002,160 - -
- 77,691,180 27,401,069 34,294,120 _ -

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

Group Cdmpahy
2020 2019 2020 2019
E3 £ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents 77,691,180 27,401,069 34,294,120 -
Bank overdrafts (note 18) (5,141,093)  (15,991,400)  (5,000,000) (11,700,848)
72,550,087 11,409,669 29,294,120

(11,700,848)
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18 Borrowings

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

~ Current £ ‘ £ £ £
Bank overdrafts — secured 5,141,093 15,991,400 - 5,000,000 111,700,848
Bank loans - secured (a) 4,938,950 3,916,586 3,943,916 3,451,545
Other loans — secured (b) - 205,746 606,428 205,746 606,428
Amounts owed to group undertakings (c) (note 31) : - - - 279,795,313 250,041,743
Amounts owed to related parties (d) (note 31) . 178,590 357,140 178,590 357,140
Finance lease obligations (e) ) 35,508 40,697 - ' -
Lease liabilities arising from IFRS 16- - 6,086,256 - 1,372,018 -

16,586,143 20,912,251 290,495,583 266,157,704

Bank loans and overdrafts includes an amount of £nil (2019: £nil) in respéct of receivables subject to invoice discounting.

~ Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Non-current £ £ : £ £

Bank loans - secured (a) ' 15,347,813 2,887,606 12,678,784 2,651,020

Other loans - secured (b) . : - 205,746 - 205,746

Amounts owed to group undertakings (c) (note 31) - i - 3,658,571 6,579,555

Amounts owed to related parties (d) (note 31) - 89,305 . - 89,305

Finance lease obligations (e) : 54,332 - 61,041 - -
Lease liabilities arising from IFRS 16 ' 53,461,047 - 16,364,020

' 68,863,192 3,243,698 © 32,701,375 9,525,626

Total borrowings . 85,449,335 24,155,949 323,196,958 275,683,330

(a) . Bank loans consist of the followmg amounts which refer to loan agreements entered into in 2011 (amended in 2012 2013
’ and 2016) and 2019:

Group:

@) A loan of $3.6m and an additional $1.2m advanced in 2012. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing
September 2011 with a review after 5 years in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The review
in June 2016 was completed and the remaining loan balance of £5 6m is repayable over 19 quarters commencing
September 2016.

(ii) A loan of £4.0m advanced in October 2019. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencing January 2020

and interest is charged at a fixed rate.

Croup and parent company:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iiii)

A loan of $46.3m. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing September 2011 with a review after 5
years in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. During 2014, $16m was converted into a new
sterling loan of £9.9m. The loan of £9.9m is repayable over 16 quarters commencing December 2013 with a review
in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The reviews in June 2016 were completed and the
remaining loan balances of £5.2m are repayable over 20 quarters.

A loan of £15.0m. This loan is repayable over 28 quarters commencing September 2011 with a review after 5 years
in June 2016 and interest is charged at LIBOR + margin. The review in June 2016 was completed and the remaining
loan balance of £4.9m is repayable over 20 quarters.

A loan of £7.5m. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencmg January 2020 and interest is charged at a
fixed rate.

A loan of £7.5m. This loan is repayable over 20 quarters commencing January 2020 and interest is charged at
LIBOR + margin.

The above loans are secured against assets within the group.
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18
(b)

©

Borrowings (contmued) .

~ Groupand parent company: '

(i) A loan of £987 581, payable over 36 months. commencing July 2018 with interest charged at a fixed rate. This loan
was procured in order to acquire an intangible asset and is secured on the asset to which it relates. . :

(ii) A loan of £661,422, payable over 8 quarterly instalments commencing December 2018 with no interest charged ’
This loan was procured in order to acquire an intangible asset and is secured on the asset to which it relates.

Parent company:

(1) £278,568,154 (2019: £248,808,445) is owed to group undertakmgs Intérest is charged at LIBOR + margin, and the

loans are repayable on demand.

(i) £535,730 (2019: £803,585) is owed to the Almac Employee Beneﬁt Trust. Interest is charged at UK base rate plus
1%. Thie loan is being repaid in quarterly instalments which commenced in March 2015. .

" (iii) £4,350,000 (2019: £7 009, ,268) is owed to Galen Limited. Interest is charged at LIBOR plus a margm The loan is
- being repaid in annual instatments which commenced in August 2018 ~

(@

(@

Group and parent company: £178,590 (2019: £446,445) is owed to The McClay Foundation. Interest is charged at UK
base rate plus 1%. The loan is being repaid in quarterly instalments from December 2014. .

Finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate.

The fair value of both current and non-current borrowings. equals their carrying amount as the impact of discountmg is not
s1gn1ﬁcant

' For the purposes of IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”, the financial liabilities noted above are measured at amortised cost.

-The carrymg amount of the group s and the parent company.'s borrowmgs is denominated in the followmg currencies:

~- ’ : Group ' Company

| 2020 2009 . 2020 - 2019
; S A £ £ _ £ R
UK pound sterling o 53,392,521 21,189,743 258,670,224 215,559,862
.US dollar 25,538,388 ' 2,966,206 57,327,149 56,359,872
Euro ' ' 6,518,426 - 7,199,585 . 3,763,596
85,449,335 24,155,949 323,196,958 275,683,330
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: : 20370 2019
) . o - %

Bank overdrafts . : 2.00-3.00 - 230-350 .
Variable rate loans - L . 1.10 - 3.00 1.35-4.75
_Fixed rate loans - ‘ S 2.00 - 5.68 2.00-5.68
Finance leases - ‘ — © . 0.00-13.50 0.00-13.50

Lease liabilities arising from IFRS 16 - \ 225-275 - -
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_18  Borrowings (continued)

The maturity profile of the carrying arﬁount of non-current borrowings at 30 September was as follows:

Loans and : K
bank Finance lease IFRS 16 lease Total
" overdrafts obligations liabilities 2020
Group £ ' £ £ . £
In more than | year but not more than 2 years 2,174,179 30,162 5,871,456 8,075,797
In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 13,173,634 24,170 14,424,120 27,621,924
In more than 5 years ] - - 33,165471 33,165,471
' 15,347,813 54,332 . 53,461,047 68,863,192 .
Loans and Amounts
] bank owedto - Finance lease Total
Group -'( overdrafts = related parties obligations 2019
£ ' £ £ £
In more than 1 year but not more than 2 years 3,093,352 89,305 29,176 3,211,833
" In more than 2 years but not more than 5 years ‘- C- 31,865 31,865
’ 3,093,352 89,305 61,041 3,243,698
Amounts
S owedto IFRS 16
i undertagkin I; lease
_other loans 202gO liabilities Total .
. 2020 2020 2020
Company ) F £ £ )
In more than one year but not more than 1,380,873 1,048,570 1,397,882 3,827,325
two years g
In more than two years but not more 11,297910 2,610,000 4,234,008 18,141,918
than five years »
In more than five years - - 10,732,132 10,732,132
12,678,783 3,658,570 16,364,022 32,701,375
Amounts Amounts
owed to , owed to
Bank and group- related
other loans undertakings parties . Total-
2019 2019 2019 2019
Company £ £ £ CoE
In more than one year but not more 2,856,767 1,233,318 89,305 - 4,179,390
than two years . : : o
In more than two years but not more - 2,717,759 - 2,717,759
than five years ' '
In more than five years - 2,628,478 - 2,628,477
2,856,767 6,579,555 89,305 9,525,626
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- 18 Borrdwings (continued)

The amounts included in the tables below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of current and non-current borrowings.

Amounts
owed to Finance IFRS 16
Bank and - related lease lease
other loans parties obligations liabilities Total
2020 2020 12020 2020 2020
Group ' £ £ £ £ B
In less than one year 10,794,638 179,327 39,277 8,195,285 19,208,527
In more than one year but not more 2,557,437 . 32,313 7,632,491 10,222,241
than two years
In more than two years but not more 13,817,612 - 25,380 18,180,200 32,023,192
than five years : '
In more than five years - - - 38,178,939 38,178,939
27,169,687 179,327 96,970 72,186,915 99,632,899
Bank loans, Amounts
other loans owed to Finance
and bank related lease
overdraft parties  obligations Total
2019 2019 2019 - 2019 .
‘Group £ £ £ £
Less than one year 20,976,858 362,607 45,075 21,384,540
“In more than one year but not more than two years 3,137,231 89,699 31,542 3,258,472
In more than two years but not more than five years - - 33,195 33,195
24,114,089 452,306 109,812 24,676,207
Amounts Amounts
owed to owed to
Bank and Group related IFRS16 lease
other loans undertakings parties liabilities Total
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
Company £ £ £ £ £
In less than one year 9,562,009 279,907,997 179,327 1,920,877 291,570,210
In more than one year but not more 1,691,175 1,136,214 . 1,902,069 . 4,720,458
than two years .
In more than two years but not more
than five years 11,868,523 2,741,112 - 5,473,609 20,083,244
In more than five years - - - 11,993,305 11,993,305
23,121,707 283,785,323 179,327 . 21,289,860 328,376,217
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18 Borrowmgs (continued)

Amounts Amounts
. Bank loans, owed to owed to
/ . other loans and - group related - . ]

overdrafts  undertakings . parties - Total

_ 2019 2019 2019 2019

Company : : £ £ £ £

Less than one year , . 16,078,079 250,278,625 362,607 266,719,311

In more than one year but not more than two years : 2,897,692 1,435,606 89,699 4,422,997

In more than two years but not more than five years - 3,142,871 - 3,142,871

In more than five years _ . : : - 2,798,517 So- T 2798,517

18,975,771 257,655,619 452,306 277,083,696

19 Trade and other payables
- ' Group ' ’ : Company
12020 - 2019 : 2020 : . 2019

: . . £ £ i . - £

Trade payables’ : 31,697,690 © 30,163,387 1,282,713 1,257,802

Amounts owed to group undertakmgs (note 31) - R 11,501,430 . 12,812,406

* Other tax and social security ) 6,606,062 4,468,954 1,446,572 1,131,360
Other creditors ’ ' . 8,936,914 8,174,21.7 . . - -

Accruals and deferred income : 80,208,593 69,104,402 9,196,816 11,607,205

127,449,259 . 111,910,960 23,427,531 26,808,773

The fair values of trade and other payables are not materially different from their carrying values as the impact of discounting is
. not significant. There is no material difference between the amounts shown above and the total contractual undiscounted cash
" flows of trade and other payables. : , :

For the purposes of IFRS 9 “Financia] instruments” the financial liabilities noted above are classified as measured at amortised
cost. :

-The Company has recognised the following liabilities relatmg to contracts with customers (these are all mcluded with deferred
income):

2020 2019

£ £

Contract liabilities recogmsed at start of the period’ - : 13,534,354 9,198,244
Amounts invdiced in prior periods recognised as revenue in the current penod 9,871,079) (8,005,628)
Amounts invoiced in the current period which will be recognised as revenue in later periods. " 9,996,614 12,341,738
Balance at the end of the period ) 13,659,889 13,534,354

Contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue within 12 months of the period end.
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20 Deferred income

Group

Company
Government and other grants £ g
At 1 October 2018 16,362,245 2,123
" Capital and other grants received during the yeaf 1,883,628 -
Released to the income statement © (2,166,237) (768)
Exchange adjustment 189,514 -
At1 October 2019 _ 16,269,150 1,355
Capital and other grants received'durin‘g the year - 4,031,698 -
Released to the income statement ’ (2,168,698) (612).
" Exchange adjustment " (293,645) L
At 30 September 2020 17,838,505 743
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of deferred income, at 30 September was as follows:
Group Compény
2020 2019 2020 2019
& £ £ £
Less than one year - 2,248,534 2,241,246 298 611"
n more than one year but not more than two years 1,921,326 1,911,060 298 744 .
In more than two years but not more than five years 6,128,956 - 6,200,693 147 -
Later than five years 7,539,689 5,916,151 - -
17,838,505 16,269,150 743 1,355
21 Other non-current liabilities
S Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
. R £ £ £
Accruals 12,126,039 12,524,179 1,480,436 .3,307 ,766
Maturity of non-current liabilities
" The maturity profile of the carrying amount of non-current liabilities at 30 September was as follows:
Group .. Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
_ £ £ £ £
In more than one year but not more than two years 3,987,008 5,492,825 667,404 2,530,705
In more than two years but not more than five years 8,128,450 7,010,212 813,032 777,061
In more than five years 10,581 ‘ 21,142 - ) -
' 12,126,039 12,524,179 1,480,436 3,307,766

There is no material difference between the amounts shown above and the total contractual undiscounted cash flows of other

non-current liabilities.
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22 Provisions for llablhtles and charges

v Group Company
. Private medical claims provision , A ] £ ' g
At 1 October 2018 6,532,106 -
Charged to the income statement 1,574,803 -
Utilised during the year (5,137,722) -
Exchange adjustment ‘ 255,879 -
At 1 October 2019 3,225,066 -
* Charged to the income statement 3,908,125
Utilised during the year (3,099,087) -
Exchange adjustment (156,275)
At 30 September 2020 _ 73,877,829 B
See also contingent liability disclosed in note 29.
23 Share capital and share premium
Group and company 202t) 2019
Authorised share capital £ £
139,999,999 (2019: 139,999,999) ordinary A shares of £1 each 139,999,999 . 139,999,999
10,000,000 (2019: 10,000 000) class B non- votmg ordmary shares of £1 each - 10,000,000 . 10,000,000
1 (2019:1) founder share of £1 1 1
150,000,000 150,000,000

The ordinary A shares, B shares rank pari passu in all respects and enjoy the same rights and privileges save that the B shares
are non-voting. The Founder share has veto rights in a number of areas; however it does not receive an economic benefit from

“the group. All shares rank in full for dividends.

Shares of £1 each

: , . Class B :
Group and company Ordinary A ordinary Founder Total
Allotted and fully paid and share capital : £ ' £ £ £
" At 1 October 2019 - 13,534,728 1,761,583 1 15,296,312 . .
Issue of share capital - - - . .
At 30 September 2020 13,534,728 1,761,583 1 15,296,312
. Share

. premium
Group and company £
At 1 October 2019 173,911,921
Issue of share capital -
At 30 September 2020 173,911,921




Group Company
. 2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Profit/(loss) before income tax 63,549,574 47,646,334  (5,837,179) 1,769,009
~ Adjustments for: f ' . :
Finance income . . (14,060) (5,398,325)  (9,356,442) (15,612,089)
Fmance costs ) \ 4,398,009 1,239,491 13,055,605 9,439,892
Deprecnauon of property, plant and equipment 21,111,524 19,590,811 1,344,790 1,343,869
Depreciation of right of use assets 7,176,992 - 399,377 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 8,530,765 8,623,120 619,256 580,977
Provision against amounts owed by group undertakings ' - . 4,075,399 5,390,815
Research and development credit . (4,830,077) ‘ (3,789,046) - -
(Proﬁt)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equ1pment - (26,850) - - 74,634
- Release of capital grant (2,168,698) (2,166,237)- 612) 4 (768)
Movement in inventories (1,135,709)  (4,777,952) - - B
Movement in trade and other recelvables (12,705,731) (6,621,581) (296,391) 1,296,066
Movement in trade and other payables 24,648,720 (6,574,879) '57,563 (2,915,425)
Net cash generated from operations 108,561,309 47,744,886 4,061,366 1,366,980
Net debt - Group
_ Other ~ Related . - E ' o
Bank loans loans party -Leases Subtotal . Cash. - Total
o £ £ o 2 £ £ £ £
gz:o‘febrt,zaglag ! (10,350858)  (980.907) (803,585) (208740) (12344090) 22623488 10,279,398
Cashflows  — 3624746 168,733 357,140 109,151 = 47259,770  (11,580,037)  (7,320,267)
Other changes - (78,080) - - (2,149) (80,229) 366,218 285,989
g’:; t‘:ﬁ‘l’;:: ;513: [(6,804,192) . (812,174) (446445  (101,738)  (8,164,549) - 1,409,669 3,245,120
Recognised on . ‘ .
- adoption of IFRS . - - - (64,118,599) (64,118,599) - (64,118,599)
16 _ S . .
Cash flows (13,503,300) 606,428 267,855 9396269  (3,232,748) 61,661,623 58,428,875
easiions = : - : - @611326)  (2,611,326) - eenxe
Other changes * 20,729 - - (2,201,749) - (2,181,020) (521,205)  (2,702,225)
Netdebtasat30 )5 :86,763) (205,746) (178.590) (59,637,143) (80,308242) 72,550,087  (7,758,155)
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24 Employee benefit trust

Under IFRS, an entity that controls an employee benefit trust is required by SIC 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”

- to consolidate that Trust. Accordingly the assets, liabilities and transactions of the Almac Employee Benefit Trust and the Almac

Offshore Employee Benefit Trust have been consolidated in these group financial statements. The Trusts are discretionary trusts

established for the benefit of employees and former employees of the parent company, including directors, and may be used to-
meet obligations under the direction of the Trustees At 30 September 2020 no shares of the parent company were held by the

‘Trusts.

25  Cash generated from operations

September 2020




7

Almac

Noteg

Group Limited

64
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[ . . .o
25 Cash generated from operations (continued)
Net debt — Company )
Bank loans . Other loans Intercompany Related party Leases Subtotal Cash Total
; £ £ ‘ £ £ £ £
gz;g;t’:;glg 1 (9,262,397) (754,402) - (22,872,2995) (803,585) (67,924). (239,543,379) (13,208,852) (252,752,231)
Cash flows 3,159,832 (57,772) (27,162,951) 357,140 67,924 (23,635,827) 1,508,004 (22,127,823)
_ Other ‘h;hanges R - - - (2,149) - (2,149)
Net debt as at 30 . . -
September 2019 (602,565 - G12.179) (269,433,704) | (416,445) - (276,794,888) (11,700,848) (288,495,736)
Recognised on o ) .
adopljf‘m of IFRS 16 . - - o - - (18,221,778) (?8,221,778) - (18,22.1’778)
Cash flows (10,520,135) ) 606,428 . (25,521,610) 267,855 1,129,302 . (34,038,160). . 40,994,968 6,956,808
Acquisitions — ’
leases - - - - (55,641) (55,641) - , (55,641)
Othér changes * - - - - (587,921) (587,921)° - (587,921)
S e as a1 39 (16,622,700) (205,746) (294955,314) (178,590) (17,736,038) (329,698,388) . 29294120 (300,404,268)
‘ “*Other changes includes interest charged in the ﬁnan(_:ia]‘ year.
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26 Pensnon commitments .

The group operates a defined contribution scheme for employees whereby the assets of the. scheme are held separately, from
those of the group in an mdependently admmlstered scheme. Pension costs for the defined contribution scheme were as

follows: .

_ . ' 12020 - 2019
Groupv o o . : £ £
Defined contribution scheme ) .o . . 7,943,844 6,853,470

Amounts owed to the pension scheme as at SO/September 2020 totalled £1,274,834 (2019: £1,085,941).
_ 2020 2019
Company R e B £
‘ Defined contribution scheme ) . ' ) . oo ‘ 77 1,946 665,071
. Amounts owed to the pension scheme as at 30 September 2020 totalled £129, 101 (2019 £113 882)
= - ~
27  Capital and other financial commltments
Contracts placed for future expenditnre not provided in the financial statements:

A ' 2020 2019
Group R ' o _ & . £
‘Property, plant and equipment - ‘ o : 7,402,422 © 5,266,454

_ Intangible assets. S . ’ ’ 1,621,402 2,510,921
, . 2020 2019.
Company ' ‘ o o R £
Property, plant and equipment B B ’ . 671,133 671,133
28 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Motor™ - . .
vehicles Buildings Other Total
. : .. 2019 2019 2019 . 2019
* Group . ' . S (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
. : £ £ N £
No later than one year - g 297,182 7,174,392 425973 - 7,897,547 -
More than one year and | 334,080 . 29713988 670738 30,718,806
no later than five years . : : . A .
Later than five years : ' - . 41,882,729 - : 41,882,729
- © 631,262 . 78,771,109 1,096,711 . 80,499,082

- Operating lease commitments as.at 30 September 2019 were £86,387,440, there were amounts totalling £5,888,358 included in
error within this disclosure, this was noted as part of the transition to IFRS 16 In 2020 the balance has been restated to

£80 ,499,082 as shown above.

-
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28 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments (continued)

Motor

. vehicles Buildings Other Total
2019 2019 2019 2019
Company ) - . (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
£ £ £ £
No later than one year : . 90,992 1,016,363 - 9,529 1,116,884
More than one year and 70,081 7,364,769 22675 7,457,525

no later than five years . :
After 5 years - 13,786,466 - 13,786,466
161,073 22,167,598 32,204 22,360,875

Operating lease commitments as at 30 September.2019 were £22,318,059, there were amounts totalling £42,816 omitted in
error from this disclosure, this was noted as part of the transition to IFRS 16. In 2020 the balance has been restated’to -

- £22,360, 875 as shown above.

29 Contingencies

There exists a contingent liability to repay certain capital and revenue grants received from Invest Northern Ireland (formerly ’
the Industrial- Development Board) if future employment levels fall below specified levels. The directors do not anticipate any
repayment falling due under the terms on which the grants were received.

The company bank borrowmgs are secured by certain ﬁxed and floating charges over the property assets and undertakmgs of
the company.

The group operates a self-insured medical plan in respect of its employees in the United States of America. The group has
made a provision in these financial statements for employee medical claims which are known at the balance sheet date as well
as those which have been incurred but have not yet been reported (subject to an actuarial valuation). The group has a stop-loss
insurance policy in placé which limits individual claims to $325,000.

30 Share-based payments ’

The group operates a phantom share scheme whereby share awards are granted to directors and senior management employees.
The share award is granted for £nil consideration and is conditional on the director or employee continuing in employment fora -
period of three years from the date the share award is made, which is the first of January following the financial year end. The
group accounts for these share awards as cash-settled share-based payments which are measured at fair-value and recognised as
an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in liabilities (within accruals). The fair values of these
payments are measured at each reporting date using professional external valuers, in line with the terms and conditions upon
which the awards are granted.- The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become unconditionally
entitled to the awards, subject to the group’s estimate of the number of awards which will lapse due to employees leaving the
group prior to vesting. The total amount recognised in the income statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual amount
of awards that are expected to vest, except where forfeiture is due to employee’s termination of contract.

Share awards are exercisable from the first of January, three years following the award date. The share award is exercisable at
the share price as determined by professionally qualified valuers at the end of the financial year when the share is exercisable
and all share awards are cash settled.
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30 Share-based payments (continued)

" The fair value of each share award granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

Grantdate - : 30 September 2020 30 September 2019
Share price at grant date — £1.023 £0.905

_Number of employees : T : . 111 106

" Share awards : | ‘ © 2,109,466 2,044,679
Vesting period (years) é ‘ T g 4*
Option life (years) : L . E 4 4
Expected life (years): S I 4 4

~Dividend yield ' : : - Nil Nil
Risk free interestrate . - ' ) 50% 5.0%

Fair value _ _ 4 : £1.023

£0.905

*The vestlng period is four years which is made up of the three years from the date of issue plus the year of service incurred in

order to be eligible for the award.

The welghted average fair value of share awards granted during the year determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model
was £1.023 (2019: £0.905). The significant inputs into the model were the share price at grant date, exercise price, d1v1dend

yield, risk free interest rate and expected option life as shown above.

Movements in the number of share awards outstanding are as.follows:

2020 . 2019
o _ Number Number
Outstanding at 1 October ' . ' o ‘ - 5,684,653 6,042,534
Granted | o : 7 , 2,109,466 2,089,081
Forfeited - ’ (123,078) (156,465)
 Exercised . _ " ' (1,941,446) - (2,290,407)
Outstanding at 30 September T 5729595 5,684,743
Exercisable on 1 January 2021/2020 K i 1,696,221 . 1,941,446
The weighted a;/erage share price of share awards exercised in the yeaf was £1.023 (2019: £0.905).
Share awards outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates:
2020 2019
Number Number
2020 . . - 1,941,446
2021 L - S 1,696,221 1,739,588
2022 ‘ ' ' : : 1,958,689 2,003,709
2023 | ' ‘ - 2,074,685 -

The total expense recogmsed in the income statement was £2,549,015 (2019: £2, 761 987) The liability at 30 September 2020

was £5,953,142 (2019: £5,144 692)
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31 Ultimate controlling party and related party transactions

‘Due to a split of ownefship and control over the groqu there'is not considered to be an ultimate parent undertaking. '

Almac Group Limited, a company incorporated in Northern Ireland, is-the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group
of undertakings of which the company is a member and for which group financial statements are prepared. The reglstered office

of Almac Group Limited is Almac House, 20 Seagoe Industrial Estate, Craigavon, BT63 5QD.

At the balance sheet date, the ultimate controlling parties are A D Armstrong, S Campbell and C Hayburn.
The McClay Foundanon is a related party due to common directors. .

Companies under common control are also related pames under IAS 24. Transactions entered into durmg the year with such
parties are as follows: .

2020 : 2019

Group . : ) T . £ £
Interest payable to reiated parties i : ) (5,366) - 11,717
Amounts owed to related parties o ‘ . ‘ ‘ (178,590)  , . (446,445)

' 2020 - 2019
Company _ , : o E £
Sales to group undertakings ' , ‘ 41,085,920 37,472,855
Purchases from group undertakings ' 4 . A (552,043) (378,973)
Interest receivable from group undertakings ) , 8,882,858 10,340,333
Interest payable to group undertakings- . ' . ‘ (7,804,533) (8,303,671)
Amounis owed by group undertakings (*) o ’ 4 266,057,266 278,623,245
Amdunts owed to group undertakings o ) B (294,955,314) (268,100,745)
Amounts owed to related parties . ‘ A (178,590) (446,445)

Group relief receivable/(payable) h ; : - 644,211 (1,332,959)

Details of amounts 6wed by and to related parties are dlscloséd in notes 16, 18 and 19 respectively. Details of interest payable
and receivable on related party balances are disclosed in note 6.

. (*) Amounts owed by group undertakmgs are stated after prov1s1ons of £36, 179 737 (2019 £32 104 338)




